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131

23 103
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2018 30

2016 JPX 400
2018 30

4 16,752,880
24,784
20,822
198,838
108,958

845

17,107,127

4 (5,580)
9 (13,343)
(3,796)

12 (1,137)
11 (17,667)
(3,430)

(618)

(2,598)

(7,155)

(55,324)

17,051,803

2018 12 21

J.P.
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2017 30

2016 JPX 400
2017 30

4 1,116,016
2,406

20,279,877

405,422

53,979

761

21,858,461

(20,627,094)

9 (10,347)
(368)

12 (1,565)
11 (10,584)
(1,430)

(500)

(2,658)

(502)

(2,257)

(20,657,305)

1,201,156

2017 12 20

J.P.
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2017 2018 30

12

11

13

10

14
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2016 JPX
2018

400
30

129,284

322,299

451,583

(17,343)
(1,927)
(7,324)
(2,695)
(2,096)

(745)
(2,769)
(316)

(2,339)

(37,554)

414,029

(49, 360)

364,669




2017
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30

2016 JPX 400
2016 10 14
2017 30

7 1,850,044

3,220

1,853,264

9 (15,035)
12 (2,372)
11 (10,714)
(1,473)

(502)

(500)

13 (847)
10 (229)

(629)

(32,301)

1,820,963

(493)

1,820,470
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2018
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30

2016 JPX 400
2018 30

1,201,156
29,689,998

(14,105,909)

15,584,089
14 (98,111)

364,669

17,051,803
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30

2016 JPX 400
2016 10 14
2017 30

20,007,780

(20,627,094)

(619,314)

14

1,820,470

1,201,156
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2018
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30
2016 JPX 400
2018 30
364,669
(322,299)
49,360
91,730

(15,636,863)

5,580

20,258,973
(20,607,563)

(54,979)

(15,943,122)

(49, 360)

299,920

(15,692,562)

29,689,998
(14,105,909)

(98,111)

15,485,978

(206,584)

405,422

198,838
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2017 30

2016 JPX 400
2016 10 14
2017 30

1,820,470

(3.,220)

493

1,817,743

(1,116,016)

(20,280,638)
30,211

(53,979)

(19,602,679)

(493)

814

(19,602, 358)

20,007,780

20,007,780

405,422

405,422
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1.
2014 12 2016 26
AIFMD
EEA AIFM NON-EEA AlIF
2018 30
16 2016 JPX 400 2016
225 2016 TOPIX
201609
201612
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
2016 225
13
BNP BNP
BNP
13
2016 TOPIX 2016 20 2016 JPX 400 2016 10 14
2016 225 2016 10 24
JPX 400 225 TOPIX
JPX 225 TOPIX
FDI
JPX 400 225 TOPIX
JPX 400
225 TOPIX JPX
400 225 TOPIX
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JPX 400 225 TOPIX
JPX 400 225 TOPIX
2.
NAV
C))
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 2014 2018
IFRS 15 2014 2018
IFRS 16 2016 2019

IFRS 17 2017 2021
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b)
@
FDI
(ii)
J.P.
NAV
(iii)

(iv)
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©

FDI FDI FDI

FDI

@

FDI

FDI

©)

®

@

Q)

Q)

(ii)
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FDI
@)

()

(3]

2018 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225

2018 30 2016 JPX 400
)
(i) 1AS 32
1AS 32
)

15
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m

Q)

@

FDI
2016 TOPIX 2018 30
18,052,718
18,052,718
(9,463)
(9,463)
FDI
180,432,550

2016 JPX 400 2018 30
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16,752,880

16,752,880

(5,580)

(5.580)

FDI
167,473,000

2016 225 2018 30

3,005,757

3,005,757

(1,229)
(1,229)

FDI
30,045,280
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2017

®

30

2016 TOPIX

FDI
276,203,670

2016 JPX 400

FDI
11,160,160

2016 225

FDI
231,835,320

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)

2017
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30

27,619,261
1,106

27,620,367

2017

30

1,115,479
537

1,116,016

2017

30

23,183,569

23,183,569

@3N

@3N
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©
@
2018 30 2017 30
Sep 2016 2016 2016
2018 30 TOPIX JPX 400 225
AA- 18,385,421 16,946,138 3,212,446
A 129,948 108,958 116,488
Sep 2016 2016 2016
2017 30 TOPIX JPX 400 225
AA- 27,750,684 1,521,438 23,254,370

A 101,904 53,979 76,658

102/260



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©)

2016 TOPIX
2018 30

9,463
3,624
19,655
689
12,318
27,074
2,586
1,179
6,398
2,929

18,487,715

18,573,630

2016 JPX 400
2018 30

5,580
3,796
17,667
618
13,343
1,137
3,430
2,598
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7,155

55,324

2016 225
2018 30

1,229
1,134
23,398
554
18,642
5,531
3,394
1,280
3,246,218
7,660

3,229,927

6,538,967

2016 TOPIX
2017 30

4,847
6,994
549
5,353
8,009
1,586
88,146

1,953

117,437

2016 JPX 400
2017 30

20,627,095
368

10,584
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2017

®

2016
30

225
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500
10,347
1,565
1,430
502
2,658

2,256

20,657,305

37
4,629
6,916

486
5,970
2,453
1,394

92,340

2,977

117,202
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2018 30

2016 TOPIX

18,052,718 18,052,718

18,052,718 18,052,718
(9,463) (9,463)
(9,463) (9,463)

2016 JPX 400
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16,752,880 16,752,880
16,752,880 16,752,880
(5,580) (5,580)
(5,580) (5,580)
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2016 225

2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX

2016

400

225

2017
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3,005,757 3,005,757

3,005,757 3,005,757
(1,229) (1,229)
(1,229) (1,229)

30

27,619,261 27,619,261
1,106 1,106
27,620,367 27,620,367
1,115,479 1,115,479
537 537
1,116,016 1,116,016
23,183,569 23,183,569
23,183,569 23,183,569
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@N @
@37 (€D)
IFRS 13
5.
6.
FDI
2018 30 FDI
2018 30
2016 TOPIX 441,990 (9,463)
2016 JPX 400 296,374 (5,580)
2016 225 224,100 (1,229)
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2017 30
2017 30
2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX 400

2016 225

2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX 400

2016 225

EDINETOOOO
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FDI

Ooooooooooooooooooad

240,600
85,554

140,180

2018 30

1,254,874
28,044
(90,483)

(10,568)

1,181,867

2018 30

642,994
24,979
(532,572)

(6,117)

129,284

2018 30

6,934,766
229,830

(295,261)
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(1,193)

6,868,142
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2016 TOPIX 2017 30

374,558
21,904
1,192,125

1,106

1,589,693

2016 JPX 400 2017 30

1,753,320
3,979
92,208

537

1,850,044

2016 225 2017 30

130,432
3,658
426,018

€
560,071

2016 JPX 400
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2016
TOPIX 2016 225
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2018 30 2016 TOPIX

2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX 400

2016 225
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NAV
NAV
2016 225
2018 30 2016 JPX 400
2017 2018 30
2018 30
17,303,000
2,598,891 38,891
(9,238,500)
10,663,391 38,891
18,421,107 66,608
1.73 1.71
2018 30
85,400
1,989,000
(947,000)
1,127,400
17,051,803
15.12
2018 30
1,178,000
2,110,000 343,023
(3,179,000) (303, 600)
109,000 39,423

2,362,401 867,526
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21.67 22.01

2017 30
2017 30

2016 TOPIX 2017 30

21,303,000

(4,000,000)

17,303,000

27,877,605

1.61

2016 JPX 400 2017 30

1,547,400

(1,462,000)

85,400

1,201,156

14.07

2016 225 2017 30

1,178,000

1,178,000

23,336,643

19.81

@ ® ©

@) NAV 0.02

(b)
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() NAV 250
NAV 0.07 () NAV 250
500 NAV 0.06 ()
NAV 500 NAV 0.05
10,000,000
© NAV 0.05
2016 TOPIX 27,758,067 2017 30
13,722,665 12,318,149 2017 30 5,352,787
2016 JPX 400 17,343,597 2017 30
15,035,085 13,342,840 2017 30 10,347,356
2016 225 36,904,711 2017 30
11,192,570 18,641,622 2017 30 5,970,494
10.
2,500
2016 TOPIX 316,237 2017 30
250,679 2017 30
2016 JPX 400 316,235 2017 30
229,030 2017 30
2016 225 316,237 2017 30
222,518 2017 30
11.
() NAV 100
NAV 0.07 () NAV 100
250 NAV 0.06 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.05 ()
NAV 500 NAV 0.04

720,000
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2016 TOPIX 12,844,082 2017 30
7,020,672 19,655,307 2017 30 6,994,129
2016 JPX 400 7,323,726 2017 30
10,714,156 17,667,047 2017 30 10,583,758
2016 225 16,743,907 2017 30
6,951,725 23,397,947 2017 30 6,915,725
12.
NAV 0.01
120,000
2016 TOPIX 19,670,706 2017 30
8,109,176 27,073,839 2017 30 8,009,176
2016 JPX 400 1,927,088 2017 30
2,372,041 1,136,502 2017 30 1,565,491
2016 225 2,280,195 2017 30
3,401,737 5,531,227 2017 30 2,453,226
13.
JPX 400
225 TOPIX
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02 100,000
2016 TOPIX () NAV 100
NAV 0.00 () NAV 100 500
NAV 0.005 () NAV 500
1000 NAV 0.003 () NAV
1000 3000 NAV 0.002 ()
NAV 3000 5000 NAV 0.001
() NAV 5000 NAV 0.0005
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100,000

2016 TOPIX 225,247 2017 30
719,839 2017 30

2016 JPX 400 2,768,921 2017 30

847,055 2017 30

2016 225 5,215,069 2017 30
953,307 2017 30
14.

2018 2017 30
2016 2016 2016
TOPIX JPX 400 225
2017 199,710 - 11,930
2018 98,675 98,111 153,652
2018 487 - 12,588
298,872 98,111 178,170
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2016 2016 2016
TOPIX JPX 400 225

2017 2,807,033 - -

2,807,033 - -
15.

74
50
16.
10

118/260



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

17.

2016 TOPIX 2016 20 2017 30

2016 JPX 400 2016 10 14 2017 30

2016 225 2016 10 24 2017 30

2016 TOPIX 2016 225

2016 TOPIX 2016 225
2018 30
2017 30

18.

2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2017 10

27

19.

2018 S&P 500 2018 11 27
20.

2018 30 2018 12 21
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2016 JPX 400

2018 30
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%)
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%)
0.13% (2017 30 0.42%)
12,100 Hakuhodo DY Holdings Inc 21,514 0.13
21,514 0.13
0.14% (2017 30 0.30%)

7,100 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 23,182 0.14
23,182 0.14

1.03% (2017 30 1.02%)
56,800 Japan Tobacco Inc 175,796 1.03
175,796 1.03

0.77% (2017 30 0.74%)
16,900 ANA Holdings Inc 68,766 0.40
15,900 Japan Airlines Co Ltd 62,455 0.37
131,221 0.77

0.10% (2017 30 0.12%)
9,100 Asics Corp 17,044 0.10
17,044 0.10
5.65% (2017 30 5.11%)

13,100 Hino Motors Ltd 15,497 0.09
79,000 Honda Motor Co Ltd 256,987 1.51
26,500 Isuzu Motors Ltd 38,995 0.23
28,700 Mazda Motor Corp 39,032 0.23
107,900 Nissan Motor Co Ltd 116,316 0.68
28,400 Subaru Corp 91,590 0.54
18,100 Suzuki Motor Corp 110,736 0.65
41,100 Toyota Motor Corp 294,687 1.72
963,840 5.65
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7,500
30,300
1,900
20,300
9,700
5,500
1,700
11,200
7,800
9,000
3,400
1,900
4,900
7,000
33,800
9,000
5,400
3,300
2,700
7,400
1,000
2,100
5,300

5,400
32,000
8,300
54,000
18,300
13,300
6,000
19,700

98.25% (2017 30
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) (
3.50% (2017 30

Aisin Seiki Co Ltd
Bridgestone Corp
Daikyonishikawa Corp

Denso Corp

JTEKT Corp

Koito Manufacturing Co Ltd
Mitsuba Corp

NGK Insulators Ltd

NGK Spark Plug Co Ltd

NHK Spring Co Ltd

Nifco Inc

Nissin Kogyo Co Ltd

NOK Corp

Stanley Electric Co Ltd
Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd
Sumitomo Rubber Industries Ltd
Toyo Tire & Rubber Co Ltd
Toyoda Gosei Co Ltd

Toyota Boshoku Corp
Toyota Industries Corp

TPR Co Ltd

TS Tech Co Ltd

Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd

5.68% (2017 30 7.46%)
Aozora Bank Ltd
Chiba Bank Ltd
Chugoku Bank Ltd
Concordia Financial Group Ltd
Gunma Bank Ltd
Hiroshima Bank Ltd
Hokuhoku Financial Group Inc

Kyushu Financial Group Inc

92.87%) (

)

3.77%)

121/260

)

37,875 0.22
131,290 0.76
3,084 0.02
109,864 0.64
14,628 0.09
40,260 0.24
1,510 0.01
22,098 0.13
24,648 0.14
9,396 0.06
11,662 0.07
3,722 0.02
10,506 0.06
26,460 0.16
55,770 0.33
15,840 0.09
8,753 0.05
9,270 0.05
5,505 0.03
45,954 0.27
2,581 0.02
9,713 0.06
12,206 0.07
612,595 3.59
22,761 0.13
25,056 0.15
9,304 0.05
30,456 0.18
10,651 0.06
9,815 0.06
8,850 0.05
10,540 0.06
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296,200
1,178,600
99,100
33,900
7,400
22,800
52,200
17,700
9,200
1,200
11,000

19,200
44,100
7,000

9,300
12,500
1,600
8,700
18,000
5,800
7,000

2,700
7,900
59,800

98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) (
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
5.68% (2017 30 7.46%) ( )

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc
Mizuho Financial Group Inc

Resona Holdings Inc

Seven Bank Ltd

Shinsei Bank Ltd

Shizuoka Bank Ltd

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc
Suruga Bank Ltd

Tokyo Kiraboshi Financial Group Inc

Yamaguchi Financial Group Inc

1.60% (2017 30 1.15%)
Asahi Group Holdings Ltd
Kirin Holdings Co Ltd
Suntory Beverage & Food Ltd

1.75% (2017 30 1.63%)

AGC Inc

Daikin Industries Ltd

Rinnai Corp

Sanwa Holdings Corp

Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Ltd
Taiheiyo Cement Corp

TOTO Ltd

4.83% (2017 30 4_89%)
Aica Kogyo Co Ltd
Air Water Inc

Asahi Kasei Corp

122/260

)

186,932 1.10
219,809 1.29
58,727 0.34
11,492 0.07
12,624 0.07
22,823 0.13
224,773 1.33
77,756 0.46
9,117 0.05
3,193 0.02
13,728 0.08
968,407 5.68
108,902 0.64
130,668 0.77
33,110 0.19
272,680 1.60
40,129 0.24
165,875 0.98
15,632 0.09
10,214 0.06
9,342 0.05
21,141 0.12
35,980 0.21
298,313 1.75
10,503 0.06
16,069 0.09
84,198 0.49
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12,900
3,500
3,800
4,700
9,600

10,100

16,100

64,200
7,900
8,700
4,900
6,200
7,400
5,600
6,900
3,700

15,900

71,000
7,400
7,900

69,500

13,900
4,800
8,100

1,100
1,300
1,000
6,000
5,200
8,100
9,300

98.25% (2017 30
98.25% (2017 30
4.83% (2017 30

Daicel Corp

Denka Co Ltd

DIC Corp

Hitachi Chemical Co Ltd

JSR Corp

Kansai Paint Co Ltd

Kuraray Co Ltd

Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp
Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Co Inc
Mitsui Chemicals Inc

Nihon Parkerizing Co Ltd
Nippon Kayaku Co Ltd

Nippon Paint Holdings Co Ltd
Nissan Chemical Corp

Nitto Denko Corp

NOF Corp

Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd
Sumitomo Chemical Co Ltd
Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corp
Teijin Ltd

Toray Industries Inc

Tosoh Corp

Ube Industries Ltd

Zeon Corp

0.98% (2017 30
Aeon Delight Co Ltd
Kanamoto Co Ltd
Meitec Corp
Nihon M&A Center Inc
Park24 Co Ltd
Persol Holdings Co Ltd
Secom Co Ltd

92.87%) (

92.87%) ( )
4.89%) ( )

0.92%)
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15,815 0.09
12,932 0.08
13,148 0.08
10,504 0.06
18,106 0.11
23,250 0.14
24,569 0.14
59,539 0.35
19,829 0.12
25,665 0.15
7,820 0.05
7,682 0.05
35,298 0.21
28,952 0.17
57,843 0.34
13,246 0.08
156,981 0.91
44,588 0.26
11,751 0.07
16,053 0.09
60,743 0.36
23,866 0.14
13,819 0.08
10,611 0.06
823,380 4.83
4,147 0.02
4,557 0.03
5,320 0.03
19,290 0.11
15,678 0.09
20,015 0.12
79,115 0.47
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
0.98% (2017 30 0.92%) ( )
3,500 Sohgo Security Services Co Ltd 18,270 0.11
166,392 0.98
1.72% (2017 30 1.41%)
800 Elecom Co Ltd 2,073 0.01

94,000 Fujitsu Ltd 63,149 0.38
4,000 Itochu Techno-Solutions Corp 7,656 0.04

11,800 NEC Corp 35,872 0.21
5,700 Nomura Research Institute Ltd 30,609 0.18
1,400 NS Solutions Corp 3,910 0.02

27,900  NTT Data Corp 35,600 0.21
2,800 Obic Co Ltd 25,676 0.15
5,400 Otsuka Corp 23,463 0.14
2,100  SCSK Corp 10,815 0.06
4,800 TDK Corp 54,336 0.32

293,159 1.72
2.94% (2017 30 1.98%)
1,100 Ci:z Holdings Co Ltd 5,797 0.03

22,500 Kao Corp 190,125 1.12
1,500 Kose Corp 35,805 0.21

12,800 Lion Corp 25,984 0.15
5,500 Pigeon Corp 29,645 0.17

17,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 149,566 0.88

19,400 Unicharm Corp 64,660 0.38

501,582 2.94
4.19% (2017 30 3.64%)

66,100 ITOCHU Corp 132,696 0.78
2,000 Iwatani Corp 7,720 0.05
3,800 Kanematsu Corp 6,084 0.04

74,100 Marubeni Corp 62,622 0.37

63,200 Mitsubishi Corp 194,530 1.13

74,400 Mitsui & Co Ltd 137,454 0.80
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1,700
53,300
56,900
10,100

6,400
77,000
2,900
1,000
2,500
1,700
12,900
26,000
4,400
46,900
22,900
155,300
19,500
60,200
10,000
1,800
2,500

28,000

7,300
37,300
21,400

98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) (
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
4.19% (2017 30 3.64%) (
Nippon Gas Co Ltd
Sojitz Corp
Sumitomo Corp
Toyota Tsusho Corp
2.40% (2017 30 2.63%)

AEON Financial Service Co Ltd
Daiwa Securities Group Inc
Financial Products Group Co Ltd
Fuyo General Lease Co Ltd

Hitachi Capital Corp

IBJ Leasing Co Ltd

Ichigo Inc

Japan Exchange Group Inc

Matsui Securities Co Ltd

Mebuki Financial Group Inc
Mitsubishi UFJ Lease & Finance Co Ltd
Nomura Holdings Inc

Orient Corp

ORIX Corp

Tokai Tokyo Financial Holdings Inc
Tokyo Century Corp

Zenkoku Hosho Co Ltd

0.92% (2017 30 0.59%)
Chubu Electric Power Co Inc
Electric Power Development Co Ltd
Kansai Electric Power Co Inc

Tohoku Electric Power Co Inc
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10,982 0.06
21,427 0.13
103,558 0.61
37,471 0.22
714,544 4.19
15,130 0.09
49,534 0.29
4,144 0.02
7,620 0.04
7,160 0.04
4,981 0.03
6,708 0.04
53,534 0.31
4,660 0.03
17,447 0.10
15,595 0.09
83,582 0.49
2,905 0.02
105,470 0.63
7,080 0.04
11,304 0.07
12,575 0.07
409,429 2.40
46,508 0.27
20,878 0.12
60,277 0.36
28,954 0.17
156,617 0.92
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
0.22% (2017 30 1.10%)

11,200 Brother Industries Ltd 24,506 0.14
7,400 Casio Computer Co Ltd 13,335 0.08

37,841 0.22

4.49% (2017 30  4.99%)

7,900 Alps Electric Co Ltd 22,483 0.13
2,800 Fujitsu General Ltd 4,855 0.03
1,575 Hirose Electric Co Ltd 21,625 0.13
3,100  Hitachi High-Technologies Corp 14,012 0.08
1,800 Horiba Ltd 13,950 0.08
18,500 Hoya Corp 116,531 0.68
2,000 Japan Aviation Electronics Industry Ltd 3,490 0.02
15,000 Kyocera Corp 93,705 0.55
17,000 MINEBEA MITSUMI Inc 31,858 0.19
9,600 Murata Manufacturing Co Ltd 178,752 1.05
11,000 Nidec Corp 182,875 1.07
9,700 Omron Corp 50,149 0.29
1,700 SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd 13,260 0.08
9,200  Yokogawa Electric Corp 18,142 0.11

765,687 4.49

1.58% (2017 30 1.38%)

3,600  COMSYS Holdings Corp 10,580 0.06
8,000 Hazama Ando Corp 8,064 0.05
45,000 Kajima Corp 38,610 0.23
1,600 Kumagai Gumi Co Ltd 6,224 0.04
3,700 Kyowa Exeo Corp 10,763 0.06
2,000 Kyudenko Corp 10,700 0.06
7,300 Maeda Corp 9,300 0.05
3,100 Maeda Road Construction Co Ltd 6,532 0.04
2,400 Nippo Corp 4,848 0.03
30,700 Obayashi Corp 35,397 0.21
12,200 Penta-Ocean Construction Co Ltd 9,052 0.05
31,400 Shimizu Corp 36,079 0.21
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
1.58% (2017 30 1.38%) ( )

7,460 Sumitomo Mitsui Construction Co Ltd 5,752 0.03
10,200 Taisei Corp 62,322 0.37
12,000  Toda Corp 11,568 0.07
3,900 Tokyu Construction Co Ltd 4,200 0.02
269,991 1.58

0.87% (2017 30 0.60%)
2,800 Heiwa Corp 7,487 0.04
10,300 Oriental Land Co Ltd 119,737 0.70
5,900 Toho Co Ltd 21,918 0.13
149,142 0.87

2.94% (2017 30 2_84%)
21,100 Ajinomoto Co Inc 44,226 0.26
4,200 Calbee Inc 17,493 0.10
2,600  Ezaki Glico Co Ltd 13,832 0.08
5,100 Kewpie Corp 14,244 0.08
6,700 Kikkoman Corp 37,453 0.22
600 Kobe Bussan Co Ltd 3,276 0.02
6,100 MEIJI Holdings Co Ltd 56,974 0.33
4,000 NH Foods Ltd 17,900 0.10
4,400 Nichirei Corp 12,399 0.07
11,500  Nippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 6,279 0.04
3,600 Nissin Foods Holdings Co Ltd 28,836 0.17
37,800 Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd 182,612 1.08
5,000 Toyo Suisan Kaisha Ltd 19,725 0.12
5,400 Yakult Honsha Co Ltd 39,960 0.23
1,000 Yaoko Co Ltd 6,110 0.04
501,319 2.94

0.26% (2017 30 0.25%)

3,800 Daio Paper Corp 5,860 0.03
40,000 0ji Holdings Corp 27,480 0.17
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87) ( )
0.26% (2017 30 0-25%) ( )
6,600 Sumitomo Forestry Co Ltd 11,068 0.06
44,408 0.26
0.68% (2017 30 0.64%)

17,800 Osaka Gas Co Ltd 40,806 0.24
4,500 Toho Gas Co Ltd 17,257 0.10
19,500 Tokyo Gas Co Ltd 57,340 0.34
115,403 0.68

0.72% (2017 30 1.35%)
1,200 Disco Corp 22,692 0.13
5,000 DMG Mori Co Ltd 7,685 0.05
28,000 Fuji Electric Co Ltd 23,632 0.14
11,900 Makita Corp 59,084 0.34
4,200 0SG Corp 9,589 0.06
122,682 0.72

1.67% (2017 30 1.33%)
4,400 Asahi Intecc Co Ltd 18,436 0.11
3,800 Nihon Kohden Corp 11,723 0.07
13,600  Olympus Corp 56,440 0.33
10,900 Shimadzu Corp 36,515 0.21
7,100  Sysmex Corp 73,414 0.43
14,000 Terumo Corp 88,900 0.52
285,428 1.67

0.06% (2017 30 0.07%)
1,200 Ain Holdings Inc 9,804 0.06
9,804 0.06
1.47% (2017 30 1.45%)

30,300 Daiwa House Industry Co Ltd 114,413 0.67
12,000 Haseko Corp 18,372 0.11
7,500 lida Group Holdings Co Ltd 16,028 0.09
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
1.47% (2017 30 1.45%) ( )
19,700 Sekisui Chemical Co Ltd 37,194 0.22
33,400 Sekisui House Ltd 65,464 0.38
251,471 1.47
2.89% (2017 30 1.11%)
5,000 Clarion Co Ltd 1,490 0.01
2,900 Hoshizaki Corp 32,509 0.19
104,600 Panasonic Corp 156,220 0.92
53,500  Sony Corp 303,024 1.77
493,243 2.89
0.06% (2017 30 0.04%)
1,600 Pilot Corp 9,872 0.06
9,872 0.06
2.93% (2017 30 3.15%)
51,100 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 100,974 0.59
23,600  MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 81,278 0.48
17,700 Sompo Holdings Inc 79,296 0.47
7,400  Sony Financial Holdings Inc 15,658 0.09
27,900 T&D Holdings Inc 46,440 0.27
34,000 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 176,562 1.03
500,208 2.93
1.60% (2017 30 1.56%)
5,400  CyberAgent Inc 35,964 0.21
1,200 Dip Corp 3,416 0.02
3,300 GMO internet Inc 8,709 0.05
5,800 kabu.com Securities Co Ltd 2,082 0.01
6,600 Kakaku.com Inc 16,513 0.10
9,200 M3 Inc 40,618 0.24
3,200 MonotaRO Co Ltd 15,680 0.09
44,800  Rakuten Inc 33,573 0.20
10,200 SBI Holdings Inc 29,111 0.17
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
1.60% (2017 30 1.56%) ( )
8,900 Start Today Co Ltd 35,734 0.21

4,400 Trend Micro Inc 27,808 0.16

64,700 Yahoo Japan Corp 23,810 0.14

273,018 1.60
0.91% (2017 30 1.16%)
9,700  Hitachi Metals Ltd 11,155 0.07

24,400 JFE Holdings Inc 51,142 0.30

40,500  Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corp 88,108 0.51
4,900 Tokyo Steel Manufacturing Co Ltd 4,822 0.03

155,227 0.91

0.83% (2017 30 0.89%)
1,800 Daiichikosho Co Ltd 9,630 0.06
3,700 Shimano Inc 60,162 0.35
6,200 Yamaha Corp 35,712 0.21
12,900  Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 35,939 0.21
141,443 0.83
0.04% (2017 30 0.05%)
3,700 Resorttrust Inc 7,252 0.04
7,252 0.04
( ) 5.28% (2017 30 2.43%)

14,000 Amada Holdings Co Ltd 14,910 0.09
4,700  Daifuku Co Ltd 22,818 0.13
1,100 Eagle Industry Co Ltd 1,960 0.01
3,800 Ebara Corp 13,091 0.08
8,700 FANUC Corp 191,443 1.12
1,400 Harmonic Drive Systems Inc 6,566 0.04
4,500 Keyence Corp 281,520 1.65

49,100 Kubota Corp 85,581 0.50

15,300 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd 61,674 0.36
5,000 Nabtesco Corp 17,050 0.10
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
( ) 5.28% (2017 30 2.43%) ( )

500 Obara Group Inc 3,160 0.02
2,900 SMC Corp 117,827 0.69
5,200 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 19,448 0.11
5,700 THK Co Ltd 18,097 0.11
5,000 Tsubakimoto Chain Co 4,400 0.03

10,600 Yaskawa Electric Corp 41,499 0.24
901,044 5.28
( ) 2.77% (2017 30 2.65%)
4,300 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 15,480 0.09
220,000 Hitachi Ltd 171,952 1.01
44,200 Komatsu Ltd 140,026 0.82
91,500 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 134,917 0.79
4,400 Tadano Ltd 5,988 0.04
1,500 Takeuchi Manufacturing Co Ltd 3,498 0.02
471,861 2.711
0.09% (2017 30 0.09%)
8,200  Nippon Television Holdings Inc 15,326 0.09
15,326 0.09
0.39% (2017 30 0.46%)
1,700 Hanwa Co Ltd 7,183 0.04
10,500 MISUMI Group Inc 33,915 0.20
700 Nippon Steel & Sumikin Bussan Corp 3,850 0.02
18,800 NSK Ltd 21,488 0.13
66,436 0.39
0.48% (2017 30 0.43%)
2,300 Dowa Holdings Co Ltd 7,854 0.05
6,000 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 18,270 0.11
26,400 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 6,574 0.04
11,600 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Ltd 49,161 0.28
81,859 0.48
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
1.50% (2017 30 1.47%)
49,300 Canon Inc 179,008 1.06
21,400 Konica Minolta Inc 22,021 0.13
27,500  Ricoh Co Ltd 27,940 0.16
13,600 Seiko Epson Corp 26,194 0.15
255,163 1.50
0.34% (2017 30 0.34%)
49,900 Inpex Corp 57,360 0.34
57,360 0.34
6.05% (2017 30 5.71%)

10,000 Alfresa Holdings Corp 26,050 0.15
90,200 Astellas Pharma Inc 152,348 0.89
9,500 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 55,195 0.32
26,200 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 111,009 0.65
10,900 Eisai Co Ltd 85,064 0.50
2,700 Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Co Inc 25,245 0.15
1,600 Kaken Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 9,104 0.05
2,600 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 24,882 0.15
11,500 Kyowa Hakko Kirin Co Ltd 25,679 0.15
9,000 Medipal Holdings Corp 20,052 0.12
11,200 Mitsubishi Tanabe Pharma Corp 21,437 0.13
21,600 Ono Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 56,095 0.33
19,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 101,916 0.60
17,300 Santen Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 33,406 0.20
1,800 Sawai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 9,072 0.05
13,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 73,983 0.43
1,900  Ship Healthcare Holdings Inc 7,942 0.05
6,800  Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd 15,946 0.09
33,700 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 157,649 0.93
2,700 Toho Holdings Co Ltd 7,298 0.04
3,300 Tsumura & Co 11,814 0.07
1,031,186 6.05
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1,300

5,800
3,700
18,800
10,800
67,200
45,100
6,000
5,600
1,500
1,200
4,800
1,200
22,000
9,900
21,800

1,600
1,400
34,700
4,900
500
1,300
5,800
2,900
1,300
1,600
10,800
7,900

98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) (
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
0.03% (2017 30
Jafco Co Ltd
3.11% (2017 30 3.10%)

Aeon Mall Co Ltd

Daito Trust Construction Co Ltd
Hulic Co Ltd

Leopalace21 Corp

Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd

Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd

Nomura Real Estate Holdings Inc
NTT Urban Development Corp

Open House Co Ltd

Pressance Corp

Relo Group Inc

Starts Corp Inc

Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Ltd
Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd

Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp

3.41% (2017 30 2.89%)
ABC-Mart Inc
Adastria Co Ltd
Aeon Co Ltd
Bic Camera Inc
Cosmos Pharmaceutical Corp
Create SD Holdings Co Ltd
Don Quijote Holdings Co Ltd
FamilyMart UNY Holdings Co Ltd
Fast Retailing Co Ltd
Izumi Co Ltd
J Front Retailing Co Ltd
K*s Holdings Corp
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)

0.04%)

5,856 0.03
5,856 0.03
11,542 0.07
66,637 0.39
22,240 0.13
6,556 0.04
130,166 0.75
120,597 0.71
14,748 0.09
6,664 0.04
9,840 0.06
2,054 0.01
14,035 0.08
3,241 0.02
89,958 0.53
15,058 0.09
17,048 0.10
530,384 3.11
9,696 0.06
1,967 0.01
82,239 0.49
8,374 0.05
11,240 0.07
4,141 0.02
30,856 0.18
33,814 0.20
66,183 0.39
10,960 0.06
18,220 0.11
9,093 0.05
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
3.41% (2017 30 2.89%) ( )
700 Kusuri no Aoki Holdings Co Ltd 5,159 0.03
2,300 Lawson Inc 15,916 0.09
3,700  Matsumotokiyoshi Holdings Co Ltd 18,408 0.11
3,600  Nitori Holdings Co Ltd 62,208 0.36
1,600 Nojima Corp 3,941 0.02
1,200 Ryohin Keikaku Co Ltd 46,800 0.27
1,400  Seiko Holdings Corp 3,338 0.02
2,200 Seria Co Ltd 11,704 0.07
1,000  Shimamura Co Ltd 9,750 0.06
2,000 Sugi Holdings Co Ltd 12,820 0.08
3,800 Sundrug Co Ltd 17,062 0.10
14,000 Takashimaya Co Ltd 13,272 0.08
2,000 Tsuruha Holdings Inc 27,780 0.16
1,100 United Arrows Ltd 4,554 0.03
10,700  USS Co Ltd 22,556 0.13
2,100 Valor Holdings Co Ltd 5,307 0.03
2,400 Welcia Holdings Co Ltd 14,136 0.08
581,494 3.41
1.03% (2017 30 0.52%)
5,100 Advantest Corp 11,771 0.07
6,700 Hamamatsu Photonics KK 31,892 0.19
200 NuFlare Technology Inc 1,362 0.01
4,700 Renesas Electronics Corp 5,104 0.03
6,100 Tokyo Electron Ltd 116,022 0.68
2,100 Ulvac Inc 8,904 0.05
175,055 1.03
0.67% (2017 30 0-30%)

2,600 COLOPL Inc 1,950 0.01
4,700 DeNA Co Ltd 9,762 0.06
24,300 GungHo Online Entertainment Inc 6,853 0.04
3,700 Konami Holdings Corp 20,868 0.12
2,200 Mixi Inc 6,169 0.04
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98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
0.67% (2017 30 0.30%)

20,200  Nexon Co Ltd 32,502 0.19
1,500 Oracle Corp Japan 13,575 0.08
4,200  Square Enix Holdings Co Ltd 22,848 0.13

114,527 0.67
4.95% (2017 30 4.92%)

1,100 Hikari Tsushin Inc 21,417 0.13
73,100 KDDI Corp 221,566 1.30
40,500 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 203,958 1.20
64,600 NTT DoCoMo Inc 182,333 1.07
26,600 SoftBank Group Corp 212,082 1.24

900 T-Gaia Corp 2,547 0.01
843,903 4.95
0.29% (2017 30 0.26%)
9,500 Bandai Namco Holdings Inc 43,415 0.26
2,500 Sanrio Co Ltd 5,365 0.03
48,780 0.29
5.22% (2017 30 4.76%)

8,200 Central Japan Railway Co 188,272 1.11
16,400 East Japan Railway Co 174,087 1.02
11,600 Hankyu Hanshin Holdings Inc 51,678 0.30

1,900 Hitachi Transport System Ltd 5,392 0.03

5,100 Keihan Holdings Co Ltd 20,272 0.12

5,100 Keio Corp 27,336 0.16

6,400 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 24,352 0.14

8,700 Kintetsu Group Holdings Co Ltd 39,324 0.23

9,200 Nagoya Railroad Co Ltd 26,312 0.15

5,500 Nankai Electric Railway Co Ltd 16,912 0.10

3,400 Nippon Express Co Ltd 27,336 0.16

3,400 Nishi-Nippon Railroad Co Ltd 10,251 0.06
13,600  Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 32,341 0.19

2,200  Sankyu Inc 12,804 0.08

135/260



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

98.25% (2017

30 92.87%) ( )

98.25% (2017 30 92.87%) ( )
5.22% (2017 30 4.76%) ( )

11,700 Seibu Holdings Inc 21,856 0.13
3,900 Sotetsu Holdings Inc 13,221 0.08
9,700  Tobu Railway Co Ltd 32,883 0.19

24,900 Tokyu Corp 47,509 0.28
8,300 West Japan Railway Co 67,761 0.40

15,200 Yamato Holdings Co Ltd 49,613 0.29

889,512 5.22
16,752,880 98.25
(0.03)% (2017 6 30 : 0.04%)
190 15,599  JPX-Nikkei Index 400 Futures September 2018 (5,580) (0.03)
(5,580) (0.03)
16,747,300 98.22
198,838 1.16
108,958 0.64
(3,293) (0.02)
17,051,803 100.00
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Ames Motes

Financial assets at tair vale thmogh proft or loss 4
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Armounts duss fom broker
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Tokl assets

Liahillfies

Financhl fabiities at fair walue through proft of ke

|
1
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Custodian fees payable 1z
Ariminisration fees payable 1
Legal and professional fees payabls

Auciit fees payable
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St up fees payable
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4P Meree Mansart Mdfiagement Limited 22 Manager
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As af 30 June 2017

Saries 2016 TOPLX Seriea 20116 JPX — Sarles 2016
Fund Milkkal 400 Fund Mikkal 225 Fund
30 Jung HA1T 30 June 2017 30 Jume 2017
Apssts Motes JPY000 JPYD00 JPYR0D
Financial assets at falr value throwgh profit ar loss 4 27,620,367 1,116,016 23,183,569
Dividends recelvable 31,650 2 ADE 30,228
Amaounts due Trom brokers 110,583 20,273,877 92,340
Cash and cash equivalents 130,317 405,422 TO.EM
Cash at brokers 101,304 53,979 76,658
Ofher recelvables 221 TE1 249
Total asseis 27,335,042 21,858, 481 23,453,845
Liablitias
Financial llablifkes at falr value through prafit or loss 4 - - {37}
Fayabie for units redesmen - {20,627 094) -
Management fees payabie o (5.353) (10,347} (5.970)
wiihnoiding tax payable {4,847} (368} 2.529)
Cusiodian fees payabie 12 (€005} {1,565) [2.453)
Administration fees payabie 11 {6,004 (10,584} {6.918)
Legal and professional fess payable {1,586} {1,430} {1,304)
Budi fees payable (540} {500} {4B5)
Amounts due io brokers (BB, 146} {2)65E) 192,340
Sat up fees payable - [k -
Cfher payables (1,553} (2,257} [2,977)
Total liablilties [117.437) [20,657.305) [117.202)
Equity
Met asests attributable fo equity unitholders 27 877805 1,201,156 73,338,643

The financlal statements were approved and autharised for Issue by the Trustee and the Directars of the Manager on 20 December 2017
JUP. Margan Mansart Management Limited 35 Manager

Infertrust Carporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustee

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese finandal siatements.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Series 2016 Sarles 2016 JPX — Serles 2016
TP Fund Hikkal 400 Fund Hikkal 225 Fund
30 Jumne 2018 30 Juna 2018 30 June 2018

Income Holss JPY D00 JPYR0D JPYO00
Med galn on financlal assets and Babilities at falr value 7
tnrough prafit or loss 1,181,567 129,264 6,868,142
Dividend Income 456,945 32,299 451,443
Tofal net Income 1 E15 451,563 7,313,
Expensss
Management fiees 9 (27.754) (17,343 {36,205}
Cusiodian fees 12 {19,571} {1.927) {2,230}
Administration fees 11 {12,344) [7.324) {16,744}
Legal and professional fees (2.538) {2695) {2,536}
Sat up fees (1.272) {2,09E) {1.272)
Audl fees {745) [745) (T45)
License fees 13 [225) (2753 {5,215}
Trstes fees 10 [316) [318) {316}
Oéher expenses (2.530) {2.339) {4,054}
Total operafing expenzes [&7,833) |37,554) [70,073)
Finance cost:
Distrinution s Uniiholders 14 [208,672) (176170}
Profit bafore fax 1,274,044 414,023 7071336
Withnoiding tax {70,279) {49,360) {62,130}
Het gain attributabie to the holders of redeemable units 1,203,765 364,669 7,002,137

There are no gains or losses In the inancial year other than fhose dealt wiin In fhe Statement of Comprefensive Income and accordingly no staberment of

fotal recogrized gains and losses has been presented.
Adl resuits are from confnuing oparations.

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financlsl siatements.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial perod ended 30 June 2017

Series 2018 Sarles 2016 JPX — Sarles 26
TOPIX Fund Hikkel 400 Fund HMikksl 225 Fund
Fimanclal Financlal Financial
period from pariod from |parind from
20 September 14 Detober 24 Detobar
2016 to & fo 2016 to
30 Jumne 2017 30 Juna 2017 30 June 2017
Income Hofss JPY 00 JPY 00D JPYO00
Med galn on financlal assats and Iabllities at fair value 7
tnrough prafit or loss 1,589,693 1,650,044 60,071
Dividend Income 168,641 3,220 S0.042
Total net Income 1,758,534 1,853,264 E10,113
Expensss
Management fees a {13,723) {15.035) {11,133}
Custodlan fees 12 {8,109} [2.372) (3,402}
sdministration fees 8 (7.021) {10,714) {6,952y
Legal and professional fess [1.834) {1.473) {1,643}
Zat up fees [3E3) [502) {EDS)
AR Tees [549) {500) {436}
Licanse fess 13 {73 {847} {o53)
Tnssies fees 10 [251) [223) (223}
Cier EXpENSEs (93] [629) BT}
Total operafing expenzas [34,083) 32,301) [26,274)
Profit bafiore tax 1,724,245 1,820,563 583,859
Withholding tax {25,714) [423) (7,654}
Het gain attributabde to holders of equity units 1 531 1,630 470 175

Thire are no galns or lossas In S financal period ather than thoss dealt with In Bhe Statemant of Compretensive Income and sccordingly mo statsment of

fotal recogrised gains and losses has been presented.
Adl resuits are from confinuing operabions.

The sccomparying nobes. ane an inbegral part of these finandal sistemenis.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS

For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Total assete attributable to redesming
participating unitholders at beginning of the
financial year

Proceeds from the [s5ue of redeemable
participating unks

Payment on the regemption of redeemalie
particlipating unks

Mel (decrease)increase resuting from unit
transactions

Med Increasa for the financial year in net assels
atirioutable to wnithoiders fram aperations

Total assets attributable to redeeming
participating unitholders at end of the Ninanclal
yaar

Zaries 2016 TOPIX Fund
30 June 2018

JPY'R00

27,877,605

4,845,305

{15,438,960]

Sarles 201 & Nikkel Fund
30 June 2018

JPYO00

23336543

S0,97693%

{76,085, 846)

(10,583,655)

1,203,765

18,487,715

{27.108.313)

7.002,187

e LI IET

The accompanying nobes. ane an inbegral part of inese financial Siteme .

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQGUITY
For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

12

Total equity at beginning of the financial year

Proceeds from the Issue of redeemable
participating unts

Payment on the redemption of redeamabie
participating unis

Met jdecrease)increase resutting from unit
transactions

Districution to Unitholsers

Med Increzse for the financlal year In net assets
attributable to Unitholders from cperations

Tokal squity at and of the Nnanclal year

Zaries 2016 JPX -
Hikkal 400 Fund

30 June 2018
JPY000

1,201,136

20,680,996

14,105,509}
15,584,088

(98,111}

354 650

17,051,803

The accompanying nobes ane an integral part of fhese inancal sistements.

13
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EGUITY
For the financial perod ended 30 June 2017

Serlea 2016 TOPIX Sarles 2018 JPX - Barles 2016
Fund Mikkel 400 Fund Mikkel 225 Fund
Financlal parbod Financial paricd Financial paricd
from 20 Sepiember from 14 Octobar from 24 Octobar
2018 e e
to 30 June 2017 to 30 Jume 2017 to 30 Jume 2017
MNotee JPYTD00 JPY000 JPYT000
Total equity at beginning of the financial pariod - - -
Procesds from the s5Ue of redeemables
participating unks 32,352 001 20,007,780 22 760 466
Fayment on the regemplion of redeemable
participating unks 16,170,120} (20,627,034} -
Med Increasaddecreass) resulting from unit
transactions 26,131,831 (619,314} 22 750 468
Distribution to Unitholders 14 {2,807) - -
Med Increase for the inancial perod In net asssts
attributable to Unithalders from operafions 1,696,531 1.820.470 576,175
Tokal equity at end of the Nnancial period 27877605 1,201,156 23336643

Thie sccompanying nobes sne an inkegral part of inese financlsl sistemenis.
14
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year from 1 July 2017 fo 30 June 2018

Saerles 2016 TOPIX Serles 2016 JPX - Saerles 2016 Hikkal
Fund Mlkkel £00 Fund 225 Fund
30 June J1E 20 Jume 2018 30 June 2018
JPY 0D JPYT000 JPYDBD
Cach Niows from oparaking activities
Tiperating gain for ihe financial year 1,203,765 364 EES T.002, 187
Adustments for:
Dividend Incame (458,548] {322 253) 454,443}
Withhuoiding tax on dividend Income 70,279 45,360 £9,135
Operating galn befors working oapial changos 816,088 81,730 8,618,883
Chang= In financlal assets at fair value through prof® or loss 9,567.543 (15,635,853) 0,177,843
iChange In Ainancial llabiHies af fair vaise fwoegh prodt or oss 5,452 5,580 1,152
Change In recehables BS.EE8 0,258,973 13,108.203)
Chang= In payables (40,585] (20,E07 563) 3,150,645
Change In cash at broker (28,044) [54.579) [35.830)
Mot ssch provided byifusad In) cparafions 10,408 248 1B, 123 T, 840,808
Income tax pakl (70,279) (43,3600 {65,133}
Dhidends received 4EE 937 253,520 474,265
Mot assh provided byusad in} cparating aobiviiss 10,806, 504 {16,852, GBI} 27,248,031
Cach fliows ussd Indprovidad by finanoling astiviElsc
Froceeds from issue of redeemabie participating uniis 4,845,305 23,589,558 50,576,935
Fayments from redemption of redeemaiie partidpating wnits [15,438,560) (14,105,508) (78,085,.848)
Distribstion nald fo Uniholders - =&, 111) -
Ll [ouifiow] from acdivitiss (18,683, 8EE] 16,486,878 {27, 108,813}
Mot shange In cash and cash equivalsnts 211,848 (208,584 137,118
Cash and cash equivaients af fue Beginning of financial year 130,347 405,422 70,804
Cach and oach sguivalenis af the snd of tha finanolal year 347,188 188,838 0T, 518
The sccomparying nobes. ane an inbegral part of these finandal sistemenis.
15
PassIM Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial perod ended 30 June 2017
Sarles 2016 TOPLX Sarlea 2016 JPX — Sarles 2016 Hikkal
Fund Mikked 400 Fund 225 Fund

Finanolal period from
20 September 2018

Finamolal period from
14 Ootober 2018

Finamolal period from
24 Duofobor 2018

o 20 Jums 2017 to 30 Juns 20497 o 30 Jums 2017
JPYTOnD JPY 00D JEY0BD

‘Cach NMiows from operaking activities.
Oparating gain for The financial period 1,538,531 1530470 576,175
Adjuctments for:
Chvidend Income {IEE 541} {3,220} =0,042)
‘Withkeolding tax on dividend Income 25,744 453 7,664
Opesrating galn bafors working capial ohangsc 1,666,804 1,817, 743 633,787
Zhang= In financlal assets at falr walue through prof® or loss 27 B30, 36T ) i1, 14601} 123,183, 565)
Change In inanclal llsbiities af fair valee Shroegh profdt or oes - - Exg
Change In receivables {110,2048) (20,280,538} [B2.553)
Change In payables 117,437 3021 117,16
Change In cash at broker {104,504 {53,579} [TE558)
Mot sash used In operations (28, 180,034) (18,802, 878) (22,704, B17)
Income tax pakd FET14) =3} [r.esd)
Chvidends received 136,551 814 15,814
Mot asch uead In aparaiing aofviies {28,042, TET) (18,802, 3EE) {22,889, BET)
Cach Nows provided byiusd In) Ninanolimg acdiviEkss
Froceeds from lssue of redesmable participating unhis 32,353,004 20,007,780 2270468
Fa iz from offr particpaling wnits £6, 170,120} - -
Distribstion pald fo Unitholkders [ZE07) - -
Mot asch Infiow from financing sofiviise 32,178,074 20, TBD I 70,488
Mot chamge in cash and cash equivalents 120,47 406,422 70,80
Cash and cash equivaients. at fue Beginning of financial pericd - - -
Cach and oach sguivalanis af the and of the poriod 130,347 43E,422 0,804

The sccompanying nobes ane an inbegral part of inese financlsl siatements.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information

PassIM Trust (the “Trust™), is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the [aws of the
Cayman Islands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended and restated
pursuant to an Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated 26 April 2016 (the “Trust
Deed™).

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a MNon-European Economic Area
("MOMN-EEA™) AIF with a European Economic Area ("EEA™) AIFM. The distribution of this trust is
restricted to Japanese investors only.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust are
separated into different sub-funds (together, the “Sub-Funds™). As at 30 June 2018, the Trust
holds 16 Sub-Funds, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund, Series
2016 TOPIX Fund, BRL 2x Bull Fund, BRL 2x Bear Fund, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2Zx Bear
Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund,
Resources Twin Alpha BREL Fund, Resources Twin Alpha TRY Fund, Resources Twin Alpha
USD Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund
201612,

For the Sub-Funds Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund and Series
2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for which this Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have
been prepared, the fund administrator is State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and fund
custodian is State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. For the remaining 13 Sub-Funds,
the fund adminisirators are BMP Paribas Securities Services and BWP Paribas Fund
Administration Senvices (Ireland) Limited and fund custodian is BMP Paribas Securities Services.
A separate Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have been prepared for these 13
Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund commenced its operations from 20 September 2016, Series 2016 JPX
— Nikkei 400 Fund commenced its operations from 14 October 2016 and Series 2016 Mikkei 225
Fund commenced its operations from 24 October 2016.

The Sub-Funds invest in Index Securities (as defined in the Supplements of the Sub-Funds)
having significantly the same weightings as those of the JPX 400 Index, Nikkel 225 Index and
TOPIX Index and Financial Derivative Instruments ("FDI™), including, but not imited to, futures
faor tracking the performance of the JPX 400 Index, Nikkei 225 Index and TOPIX Index and for
the purpose of efficient portfolio management, including equitisation of cash exposures.

17
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. General Information (continued)

The Sub-Funds operate principally as index fracking funds and as such, the adverse
performance of an Index Security will not ordinarily result in the elimination of that Index
Security from the Sub-Funds’ portfolios. The Sub-Funds may not be invested in all the Index
Securities of the JPX 400 Index, Nikkei 225 Index and TOPIX Index at all times due to various
factors such as, but not limited to, the passive investment strategy of the Sub-Funds and
changes to the composition of the JPX 400 Index, Mikkei 225 Index and TOPIX Index. For
example, when an Index Security ceases to be a constituent of the JPX 400 Index, Mikkei 225
Index and TOFPIX Index, MNikko Asset Management Co., Lid. (“lnvestment Manager™) may
rebalance the Sub-Funds' portfolio by selling the outgoing Index Security and using the
proceeds to invest in areplacement Index Security, which will reflect the replacement
constituent of the JPX 400 Index, Mikkei 225 Index and TOPIX Index. However, the Sub-Funds'
portfolio may at any time contain securities which are not a constituent of the JPX 400 Index,
Nikkel 225 Index and TOPIX Index, but will be within the permitted investment universe of the
Sub-Funds.

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented, unless
otherwise stated.

All references to net asset value ("MAVT) throughout these financial statements refer fo net
assets atiributable to registered holders of Units (*Unitholders™) unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Funds have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the financial year in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected.

18
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
The base cumency of the Sub-Funds as well as the operational currency of the redeemable

parficipating units (the “Units™) is Japanese Yen (“JPY™). The financial statements of the Sub-
Funds are presented in JPY.

New standards and amendments to standards that are relevant to the Sub-Funds but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Sub-Funds

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™ was issued in July 2014 and will become effective for the periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Sub-Funds' financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial
statements.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” was issued in May 2014 and will become
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Sub-Funds' financial position, performance or disclosures in its
financial statements.

IFRS 16 “Leases” was issued in January 2016 and will become effective for period beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The new standard is not expected fo have a significant impact on the
Sub-Funds’ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Conftracts™ was issued in May 2017 and will become effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, It applies to: insurance contracts, including
reinsurance contracts, issued by an entity; reinsurance contracts held by an entity; and
investment confracts with discretionary participation features issued by an entity that issues
insurance contracts. An insurance contract is defined as ‘a contract under which one party (the
issuer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholder. The new standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Sub-Funds’ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

15
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(i) Classification

The Sub-Funds classify their investments in equity securifies and Financial Derivative
Instruments (“FDI™) as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
These financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading.

Financial assets or liahilities held for trading are those acquired or incurmed principally for
the purposes of selling or repurchasing in the near term or if on initial recognition is part of
a portfolio of identifiable financial investments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

(i) Valuation of Investments

J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the “Manager™) has appointed State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™) for the purposes of calculating the
MAY of the Sub-Funds and valuing each asset in accordance with the pricing hierarchy
and procedures outlined in the Securties Yaluation Price Source Agreement.

The Investment Manager must assist the Administrator and the Manager in pricing the
assets of the Sub-Funds where applicable, including the provision of any supporting
pricing information.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
the difference between disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and take into
account all brokers' charges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gains or losses
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Sub-Funds commit to purchase or sell the investments. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub-Funds
have transfemed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(iv) Measurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs for financial assets
camied at fair value through profit or loss are expensed as incumed.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are measured at fair value. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities fraded in active markets is based on their quoted market
prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held by the Sub-Funds are the market closing prices at reporting date.

Gains and losses arnising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss® category are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income within “net gains of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss® in the
financial year in which they anse.

(c) Financial Derivative Instruments

FDI are recognised at fair value on the date on which a FDI confract is entered into and
subseguently are re-measured at their fair value. All FDI are cammied as assets when their fair
value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of FDI
are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The price is based on counterparty
tradeable market price.

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial asset and liahilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
FDI and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the date of the Statement of
Financial Position.

When the Sub-Funds hold FDI with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices as a basis
for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies this bid or asking price to
the net open position, as appropriate.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not fraded in an active market is
determined using bid price of broker quotes.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Fair value estimation (continued)

In particular, the fair value of debt securities is determined by reference to the broker quotes as
obtained from independent pricing sources including Financial Times Evaluated and Bloomberg
for Japanese Government Bonds.

(e) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and setfle the hability
simultaneously.

()  Amounts due fromito broker

Amounts due fromdto broker represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered at the financial year
end respectively.

(g) Income and expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
It includes interest income from cash and cash equivalents and on debt securities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.

(h) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
ftems included in the Sub-Funds' financial statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™). This is

JPY for the Sub-Funds which reflects the primary capital raising market. The financial
statements are presented in the JPY which is also the Sub-Funds' presentation cumency.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign cummency fransactions are franslated into the functional cumency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign cumency assets and
liahilities are translated into the functional cumency, using the exchange rate prevailing at
the financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the franslation at period-end exchange rates of all assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Sub-Funds do not isolate that portion of gains or losses on trading securities and FDI
which is due to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in the
market price of securities. Such fluctuations are included in the net gains or losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other shor-term highly
liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis. Bank
overdrafts, if any, are shown as liahilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(i) Cash at broker

Cash at broker includes margin deposits for futures contracts which relates to collateral held
with the relevant broker.

(k)] Redeemable units

Unitholders may request the Sub-Funds o redeem all or any of their units on any redemption
date at the net asset value per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemption
procedures. The minimum redemption amount that applies to the Sub-Funds are contained in
the Prospectus or, as the case may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager may, in its
absolute discretion, waive the minimum redemption amount for each class in general, or in
respect of a specific redemption request in whole or in part.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Redeemable units (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund have two classes of units in issue
as at 30 June 2018. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of units in issue as at 30
June 2018.

Units are classified as equity when there is only one class of units outstanding for a Sub-Fund
as at the Statement of Financial Position date and these units meet all the other conditions of
equity classification under IAS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation”, including the condition
that these units were the most subordinated units in issue in that Sub-Fund. Where the
conditions for classification of units as equity are not fulfilled, units are classified as net assets
attributable to redeeming participating unitholders, in line with 1AS 32.

(I) Taxation

The Sub-Funds currently incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment
income and capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Refer to Mote 15 for details of taxation.

(m) Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each Sub-Fund are bome by the respective Sub-
Funds. The preliminary expenses incurmed in the establishment of the Trust and the Sub-Funds
are recognised as expenses of the Sub-Funds in the financial year in which they arise.

(n) Distributions

The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the distributions payable

to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds. All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to be
withheld.

3. Financial risk management
The Sub-Funds activities expose them to a variety of risks, including but not limited 1o market

price risk, interest rate risk, curmmency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial
instruments held.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

The financial instruments are held in accordance with the published investment policies of the
Sub-Funds and managed accordingly to achieve the investment objectives.

The risks and respective risk management policies employed to manage these risks are
disclosed below:

(a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It
represents the potential loss the Sub-Funds might suffer through holding market positions in the
face of price movements. Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these Sub-
Funds, market risk within the FDI will be significant, but is entirely in line with investor retumns.
Realised and unrealised gains are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
financial vear in which they arise.

As at reporting date the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2018
JPY'000

Heild for frading

Equities 18 718

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18,052,718

Held for frading

Futures 9463

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 9,463)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulied in an
increase/decrease of JPY180,432 550.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2018
JPY000

Heid for frading

Equities 16,752 830

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,752,880

Held for frading

Futures (2,580)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (5,580)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk (continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY167 473,000,

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2018
JPY000

Held for frading

Equities 3,005 757

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,005,757

Heid for frading

Futures (1,229)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,229)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulied in an
increase/decrease of JPY30,045,230.

For the financial period ended 30 June 2017 the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2017
JPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 27,619,261

Futures 1,106

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 27,620,367

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial penod would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY276, 203,670,

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2017
JPY000

Heid for frading

Equities 1,115,479

Futures 537

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,116,016
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk (continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial penod would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY11,160,160.

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2017
JPY000

Held for frading

Equities 23,183 569

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23,183,569

Heid for frading

Futures (A7)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (37)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net
assets attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial penod would have resulted in an
increase/decrease of JPY231,835,320.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. Changes to prevailing interest rates or changes
in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the
securities held. In general, if interest rates rise, the value of fixed income securities will decline.
A decline in interest rates will in general have the opposite effect. Other assets and liabilities
bear no interest rate risk. The Sub-Funds invest primarily in equity securities, therefore is not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk and no sensitivity analysis has been presented.

(c)] Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Sub-Funds are not exposed fo currency risk arising from balances
and transactions in foreign cumencies as the majority of their assets and liabiliies are
denominated in JPY, the Sub-Funds’ functional and presentation currency. Accordingly, the
Management considers that it is not necessary to present a sensitivity analysis of currency risk.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment (including payment of amounts in full when due) that it has entered into with the
Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear
the risk of setftement default. Cash and trading securties are held with the Custodian
throughout the year. All trading securities held by the Sub-Funds are companies listed on
recognised stock exchanges in Japan. Mone of them are in the nature of debt. The settlement of
equities with the counterparty is on an against delivery basis and is regulated by rules of
respective stock exchanges. In general, there is no credit risk involved for such kind of cash
settlerment.

For the purpose of cash management, the Sub-Fund has bank accounts with the Custodian and
Broker. Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed State Strest
Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited as its Custodian.

All the assets/{liabilities) of the Sub-Funds were held with the Custodian except cash held at the
Broker, Mizuho Securties Singapore, for futures trading.

The tables below summarises the amount of the Sub-Funds’ assets held with the Custodian and
Broker with external rating and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2018 and as at
30 June 2017

S&P Global Series 2016 Series 2016 JPX — Series 2016
; TOPIXFund  Mikkei 400 Fund  Nikkei 225 Fund
30 June 2018 Ratings JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Assets at Custodian AA- 18,385,421 16,946,138 3,212,446
Assets at Broker A 129,948 108,958 116,488
S&P Global Series 2016 Series 2016 JPX — Series 2016
30 June 2017 Ratings  TOPIXFund  Nikkei400 Fund  Nikkei 225 Fund
JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Assets at Custodian AA- 27,750,684 1,521,438 23,254,370
Assets at Broker A 101,904 53,979 76,658
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial

liabilities.

The Sub-Funds are exposed to daily cash redemptions of paricipating units. Sub-Funds
therefore invest the majority of theirs assets in investments that are traded in an active market
and can be readily disposed. The Sub-Funds’ majority assets are listed securities which are
considered readily realisable as they are listed on well established stock exchanges.

The tables on the below and on the following page analyse the Sub Funds' financial liahilities
which will be setiled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
pericd at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. All payables are due for

settlernent within one month.
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
As at 30 June 2018 Less than 3 months
JPY000
Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss 9,463
Withholding tax payable 3,624
Administration fee payable 19,655
Audit fee payahle 689
Management fee payable 12,3118
Custodian fees payable 27,074
Legal and professional fees payable 2,586
Set up fees payable 1,179
Amounts due to brokers 6,308
Other payables 2,829
Met asset value attributable to redeeming paricipating unitholders 18,487,715
Total liabilities 18,573,630
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2018 Less than 3 months

JPY000

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5,580
Withholding tax payable 3,796
Administration fee payable 17,667
Audit fee payable 618
Management fee payable 13,343
Custodian fees payahle 1,137
Legal and professional fees payable 3,430
Set up fees payahle 2598
Other payables 7,155
Total liabilities 55,324

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2018 Less than 3 months
JPY000

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,229
Withholding tax payable 1,134
Administration fee payable 23,398
Audit fee payable hh4
Management fee payable 18,642
Custodian fees payable 5531
Leqgal and professional fees payable 3,394
Set up fees payable 1,280
Payable for units redeemed 3,246,218
Other payables 7,660
Met asset value aitributable to redeeming participating unitholders 3,220 927
Total liabilities 6,538,967
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
As at 30 June 2017

Withholding tax payable
Administration fee payable

Audit fee payable

Management fee payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable
Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Total liabilities

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2017

Payable for units redeemed
Withholding tax payahble
Administration fee payable
Audit fee payable
Management fee payahle
Custodian fees payable
Legal and professional fees payable
Set up fees payable
Amounts due to brokers
Other payables

Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY?000

4,847
6,004
549
5,353
8,000
1,586
88,146
1,853
117,437

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

20,627,095
368
10,584
500
10,347
1,565
1,430

502

2,658
2,256
20,657,305

3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2017

Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fee payable

Management fee payable

Custodian fees payahle

Legal and professional fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Total liabilities

(f) Capital risk management

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

7
4,629
6,916

486
5,970
2453
1,394

92,340
2,977
117,202

The Sub-Funds' capital is represented by the Units in the Sub-Funds and shown as net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units in the Statement of Financial Position. In order to
achieve the investment objectives, the Sub-Funds endeavor to invest its capital in accordance
with the investment policies, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests.
Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement

The Sub-Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or
lighilities that the Sub-Funds have the ahility to access at measurement date;

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are
therefore classified within Level 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than guoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2.

As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets andfor are subject
to transfer resirictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor non-transferability,
which are generally based on available market information.

Level 3 - Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs could have a significant impact on the instrument's valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are reguired o reflect differences
between the instruments.

33
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against
the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs
that require significant adjustment based on unobsenvable inputs, that measurement is a Level
3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific 1o the asset or lability.

The determination of what constituies “observable®™ requires significant judgment by the
Managers. The Managers consider observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided
by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and
liahilities measured at fair value at the financial yvear ended 30 June 2018:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY?000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 18,052 718 - - 18,052.718
Total 18,052,718 - - 18,052,718
Fimancial liabilities
Financial fiabilifies af fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (9,453) - - (9,463)
Total (9,463) - - (9,463)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY?000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 16,752 880 - - 16,752 880
Total 16,752,880 - - 16,752,880
Fimancial liabilities
Financial fiabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (5,6580) - - (5,580)
Total (5,580) - - {5,580)
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Total

JPY'000 JPY?000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 3,005,757 - - 3,005,757
Total 3,005,757 - - 3,005,757
Fimancial liabilities
Financial fiabilifies af fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (1,229) - - {1,229)
Total (1,229) - - (1,229)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and
liahilities measured at fair value at the financial period ended 30 June 2017:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 27,619,261 - - 27,619,261
Futures 1,106 - - 1,106
Total 27,620,367 - - 27,620,367
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Total
JPY'000 JPY?000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 1,115,479 - - 1,115,479
Futures R3T - - a7
Total 1,116,016 - - 1,116,016
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assefs af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 23,183,569 - - 23,183,569
Total 23,183,569 - - 23,183,569
Financial liabilities
Financial fiabilities af fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (37) - - (37)
Total {37) - - {37)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement (continued)

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of
the financial year and are deemed to have occumed when the pricing source or methodology
used to price an investiment has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under
IFRS 13. There were no fransfers hetween Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year.

Assets and liabilities not camied at fair value are camied at amortised cost; their camying values
are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Cash includes deposits held with banks and other
short-term investments in an active market and they are categorised as Level 1. Receivable for
investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for seftlement of trades
and other obligations due to the Sub-Funds. Other payables represent the contractual amounts
and obligations due by the Sub-Funds for setflement of trades and expenses. All receivable and
payable balances are categorised as Level 2. The value of redeeming units is calculated based
on the net difference between total assets and all other liabilities. A demand feature is attached
to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders’ option and can be put back to the Sub-
Funds at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Sub-Fund's net asset
value attributable to the share class. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate
categorisation for the net assets attributable to holders of redeeming units.

5. Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Apart from investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as
at fair value through profit or loss, all other financial assets as disclosed in the Statement of
Financial Position, including other receivables, amounts due from broker and cash and cash
equivalents, are categorized as “other financial receivables".

Financial liabilifies

Apart from investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as
fair value through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position, including administration fee payable, management fee payable, frustee fee payable,
audit fee payable, amounts due to broker and other payables are categorised as “other financial
liahilities".

37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category

The Sub-Funds hold exchange fraded FDI (futures).

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy or sell a security or cumency at a
specific price or rate at a future date. The daily change in contract value is recorded as an
unrealised gain or loss and the Sub-Funds recognise a realised gain or loss when the contract
is closed. Unrealised gains and losses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

As of 30 June 2018, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following FDI:

30 June 2018

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Motional value Fair value
JPY 000 JPY000
441,950 (9,463)
296,374 (5,580)
224 100 (1,229)

As of 30 June 2017, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following FDI:

30 June 2017

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Motional value Fair value

JPY'000 JPY?000
240,600 1,106
85,554 R37
140,180 (37)

7. Met gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

30 June 2018
JPY'000

Met gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss:
Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial derivatives
Unrealised loss on investments
Unrealised loss on financial denvatives

1,254,874
28,044
(90,483)
(10,568)
1,181,867
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial derivatives

Unrealised loss on investments

Unrealised loss on financial derivatives

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNet gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial denvatives

Unrealised loss on investments

Unrealised loss on financial derivatives

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

Met gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial denvatives

Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives

30 June 2018
JPY000

642,994
24979
(532,572)
(6,117)

129,284

30 June 20138
JPY'000

6,934, 766
229,830
(295,261)
(1,193)
6,868,142

30 June 2017
JPY'000

374,558
21,904
1,192,125
1,106

1,589,603
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial derivatives

Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNet gain on fimancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial denvatives

Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised loss on financial derivatives

8. Redeemable units in issue

30 June 2017
JPY'000

1,753,320
3979
82,208
537
1,850,044

30 June 2017
JPY'000

130,432
3,658
426,018
(37)

560,071

Redeemable participating units are classified as equity for Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund
and liahility for Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund. Series 2016 TOPIX
Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund do not fulfil the criteria of having a single share class
required to classify redeemable participating units as equity. Redeemable participating units are
camied at the redemption amount that is payable at the date of the Statement of Financial
Position if the holders exercise their rights to put the units back to the Sub-Funds for cash at the

relevant dealing day.

Redeemable participating units are issued and redeemed at the option of the holders at prices

based on the Sub-Funds’ NAY per unit at the time of issue or redemption.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

The Sub-Funds' NAV per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to holders of
each class of redeemable participating units with the total number of outstanding redeemable
participating units for each respective class. In accordance with the provisions of the Sub-
Fund's regulations, investment positions are valued based on the quoted market prices for the
purpose of determining the NAY per unit for subscriptions and redemptions. Unitholders may
redeem their units on any dealing day which is daily in whole or in part. In addition, in
accordance with the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary expenses incurred in the
formation of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are bome by the Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkel 225 fund have two classes of units in issue as
at 30 June 2018, Class A and Class B. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of
units in issue as at 30 June 2018, Class A. The movements of the Redeemable FParticipating
Units during the financial year from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Class A Class B
MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the _
financial year 17,303,000
Units issued 2,598 691 38,891
Units redeemed (9.238,500) -
;;L;rpher of units in issue at the end of the financial 10,663,391 38,891
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000 18,421 107 66,608
Met asset value per unit - JPY'000 1.73 171

41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued

Units redeemed

Mumber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000

Net asset value per unit - JPY'000

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued

Units redeemed

Mumber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000

Met asset value per unit - JEY'000

30 June 2018

Class A

85,400

1,989,000

(947 000)

1,127 400

17,051,803

1512

30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Class A Class B
1,178,000 -
2,110,000 343,023
(3,179,000} (303,600)
109,000 39423
2,362 401 867 526
2167 2201

Each of the Sub-Funds had one class of units in issue as at 30 June 2017, Class A The
movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial perod from the
respective dates of commencement, as detailed in Note 1, to 30 June 2017 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the financial period

Units issued
Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the financial period

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - JEY'000

30 June 2017
21,303,000
(4,000,000)
17,303,000

27,877,605
1.61

42
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the financial period
Units issued

Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the financial period

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000

Met asset value per unit - JEY'000

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

MNumber of units in issue at the beginning of the financial period
Units issued

Units redeemed

MNumber of units in issue at the end of the financial period

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000

Met asset value per unit - JFY'000

9. Management fees

30 June 2017

1,547 400
(1,462,000)
85,400

1,201,156
14.07

30 June 2017

1,178,000

1,178,000

73,336,643
19.81

An aggregate amount of the management fees described below as (a), (b) and (c) is payable to
the Manager out of the assets of the Sub-Funds. The Manager will pay, out of the management
fees, the fees of the Investment Manager and the Distributor, as allocated by the Manager as
follows, subject to its absolute discretion. The management fees are calculated on each

Yaluation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY quarterly in arrears.

(a) The Manager is entitted to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual

rate of 0.02% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds.

(b} Investment Manager Fee:

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at
annual rate of: {i) 0.07% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY
of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than JPY25 hillion; (i) 0.06% of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPY25
billion and equal or less than JPY50 billion; and (jii) 0.05% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate WAV of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPY50 billion,
provided that the Investment Manager shall be entitled to 2 minimum of JFY 10,000,000 per

annuim.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. Management fees (continued)

(c) The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual
rate of 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 TOPDX Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY27 758,067 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY13,722 665) with
JPY12,318,149 (30 June 2017: JPY5_ 352 787) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial
year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial
year amounted to JPY17,343 597 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY15,035,085) with
JPY13,342 840 (30 June 2017 JPY10,347,356) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY36,904,711 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY11,192570) with
JPY18,641,622 (30 June 2017 JPY5,970,484) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial
Vear.

10. Trustee fees

Intertrust Cornporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) is entitlied to receive out of the
assets of the Sub-Funds, the annual Trustee Fee of USD2 500 payable quarterly in amears,
plus fees for additional time, disbursements, out-of-pocket expenses and start-up expensas.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY316,237 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY250,679) with JPYNIl (30 June 2017:
JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY316,235 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY229,030) with JPYNil (30 June 2017:
JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY316,237 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY222 518) with JPYNil (30 June 2017:
JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
11. Administrators fees

The Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at annual rate
of: (i) 0.07% of the NAVY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-
Funds which is equal to or less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.06% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds for
any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Funds which is more than JFY10 billion and equal
or less than JPY25 hillion; (i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the
aggregate MAY of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY25 billion and equal or less than
JPYEQD hillion; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAVY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAV
of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY50 billion, provided that the Administrator shall be
entitled to a minimum of JPY 720,000 per month.

The Administrator Fee is calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The
Administrator Fee is payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in amears.

The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Funds for its disbursements and out-of-pocket
EXDENSES.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY12,844 082 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY7,020,672) with JPY19,655,307 (30
June 2017: JPYE,994,129) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPYT,323,726 (financial period ended 30 June 2017. JPY10,714,156) with
JPY17, 667,047 (30 June 2017: JPY10,583,758) in ouistanding fees at the end of the financial
year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY16,743,907 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY6,951,7258) with JPY23, 397,947 (30
June 2017 JPYE,915,725) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

12. Custodian fees

State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited (the “Custodian”) is entitled to receive out of
the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds,
provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY120,000 per month.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY18,670,706 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY8,109,176) with JPY27 073,839 (30
June 2017 JPY&,009,176) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12. Custodian fees (continued)

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted
to JPY1,927 088 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY2 372,041) with JPY1,136,502 (30
June 2017: JPY1,565,491) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY2,280,195 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY3,401,737) with JPY5,531,227 (30
June 2017: JPY2,453 226) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

13. License fees

Fees incurred in connection with the reference to a licensed index are paid to the JPX 400 Index
licensor, Nikkei 225 Index licensor and TOPLX Index licensor and bome by the Sub-Funds.

The License fee for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund and the Series 2016 MNikkei 225
Fund is 0.02% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds provided that the licensor shall be enfitled to a
minimum of JPY 100,000 per annum for each of these Sub-Funds.

The License fee for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund is (i) 0.01% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.005%
of the WAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is
equal or more than JPY10 bilion and less than JPYS0 billion; (i) 0.003% of the NAY of the
Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than
JPYED hillion and less than JPY100 billion; (iv) 0.002% of the MAY of the Sub-Fund for any
porfion of the aggregate MAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY100 billion and
less than JPY 300 billion; () 0.001% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY300 billion and less than
JPYE00 billion and (vi) 0.0005% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate
MNAY of the Sub-Fund which is egual or more than JPYS00 hillion, provided that the licensor
shall be entitled to a minimum of JFY100,000 per annum.

The License fee is calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY.
The License fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to

JPY225 247 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY719,839) with JPYNil (30 June 2017:
JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
13. License fees (continued)

The License fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY2, 768,921 (financial period ended 30 June 2017 JPY847, 055) with JPYNIl (30 June 2017
JEYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY5, 215,069 (financial period ended 30 June 2017: JPY953,307) with JPYNiIl (30 June 2017:
JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

14. Distribution to Unitholders

The Sub-Funds' investments are expected 1o generate a certain amount of income on a periodic
basis.

It is the current intention of the Manager (although it is under no obligation to do so) to make
semi-annual distributions in February and August of each year to Unitholders of record of the
Sub-Funds on the Business Day immediately preceding the relevant distribution date.

Distributions may be made out of the net income, realised and unrealised capital gains net of
realised and unrealised losses and capital of the Sub-Funds for the relevant financial year, or
in such other manner as specified in the Trust Deed. The Manager has complete discretion as
to the amount and timing of the distributions payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds.

However, the Manager will on each occasion consult with the Investment Manager as to the
amount of such distributions and will rely on the Administrator's continuing calculations and
information as to the amount available to be distributed based on the possibility of continuing
sustainable pay-out amounts on such semi-annual basis.

All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to he withheld.

The tables below summarise the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2018 and 2017

Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2016 JPX ~ Series 2016 Nikkei

Fund Nikkei 400 Fund 225 Fund

Ex-date JPY'D00 JPY'000 JPY'000
01 August 2017 199,710 - 11,930
01 February 2018 98,675 98,111 153,652
01 May 2018 487 - 12,588
Total distribution 208,872 98,111 178,170
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Distribution to Unitholders (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2016 JPX Series 2016 Nikkel

Fund Mikkei 400 Fund 225 Fund

Ex-date JPEY000 JPY'000 JPY'000
01 February 2017 2,807,033 - -
Total distribution 2,807,033 - -

15. Taxation

The Trust and its sub-funds are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in
the Cayman Islands. The only taxes which will be chargeable on the Trust and its Sub-Funds in
the Cayman Islands are nominal amounts payable to the registrar of Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds are registered as an exempted trust pursuant to Section 74 of the Trusts Law.
The Trustee has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Govemor-in-Cabinet of the
Cayman Islands, which provides that, for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation of
the Sub-Funds, no law that is thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or
duty to be levied on income or on capital assets, gains, or appreciation or any tax in the nature
of estate duty or inhertance tax will apply to any property comprised in the Sub-Funds, or to any
income arising under the Sub-Funds or to the Trustee or to the Unitholders in respect of any
such property or income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in these
financial statements.

Unitholders will not be subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman
Islands, with respect to the Units owned by them and distributions received on such Units, nor
will they be subject to any estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman Islands. There are no
exchange controls in Cayman.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-Funds may be subject to withholding tax
imposad in the country of ongin. Investment income is recorded gross of such taxes.

The Trust and its Sub-Funds have been formed as a unit trust under the Cayman Islands law.
The Trust and its Sub-Funds are assumed to be freated as a foreign investment frust, as a
matter of Japanese law, which is similar to a secunties investment trust under the Law
conceming Investment Trusts and Investment Corporations of Japan. Further, it is anticipated
that the Sub-Funds are not listed on any stock exchange. The Cayman Islands are not party to
any double taxation freaties. Under current Cayman Islands law no tax will be charged in the
Cayman Islands on profits or gains of the Sub-Funds and dividends of the Sub-Funds will be
payable to Unitholders reside in or outside the Cayman Islands without deduction of tax.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Taxation (continued)

Mo stamp duty is levied in the Cayman Islands on the transfer or redemption of Units in the Sub-
Funds. The Sub-Funds invest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries
other than the Cayman Islands.

Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are
required to be determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be
deducted by the Sub-Funds' broker on a "withholding" basis.

16. Transactions with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party to
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decision.

Details of the related party transactions are included in Motes 9 and 10.
There are no other related party transactions during the financial year.
17. Comparatives

Comparative information provided relates to the periods outlined below:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund from 20 September 2016 to 30 June 2017
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund from 14 October 2016 to 30 June 2017
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund from 24 October 2016 to 30 June 2017

Following the launch of class B units of Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225
Fund, the criteria for classifying the redeemable participating units as equity for the Series 2016
TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund are no longer satisfied. For the year ended 30
June 2018 the redeemable participating units for the Sub-Funds above are classified as
liahilities, the comparative for the period ended 30 June 2017 remains shown as equity. Thus
these are not entirely comparable.

18. Significant events during the financial year

Class B units of Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund were launched on
27 October 2017.

There were no other significant events during the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
19. Subsequent events
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund launched on 27 November 2018.

There are no other significant events after the financial year end date that would have an impact
to the financial statements.

20. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Trustee on 21 December 2018,
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited)

As at 30 June 2018
Fair Value % of Total
Nominal JPY 000 Net Assets
Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%)
Advertising: 0.13% (30 June 2017: 0.42%)
12,100 Hakuhodo DY Holdings Inc 21514 013
21,514 0.13

Aerospace & Defense: 0.14% (30 June 2017: 0.30%)

7,100 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Lid 23182 014
23,182 0.14

Agriculture: 1.03% (30 June 2017: 1.02%)
56,800 Japan Tobacco Inc 175,796 1.03
175,796 1.03

Airlines: 0.77% (30 June 2017: 0.74%)

16,900 ANA Holdings Inc 68,766 040
15,900 Japan Airlines Co Ltd 62,455 037
131,21 0.77

Apparel: 0.10% (30 June 2017: 0.12%)
9,100 Asics Corp 17,044 010
17,044 0.10

Auto Manufacturers: 5.65% (30 June 2017; 5.11%)

13,100  Hino Motors Ltd 15,497 0.09
79,000  Honda Motor Co Ltd 256,087 151
26,500  Isuzu Motors Lid 38,995 0.23
28,700  Mazda Motor Corp 39,032 0.23

107,900  Nissan Motor Co Lid 116,316 0.68
28,400  Subaru Corp 1,590 0.54
18,100  Suzuki Motor Corp 110,736 0.65
41,100  Toyota Motor Corp 204 a7 172

963,840 5.65
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Auto Parts & Equipment: 3.59% (30 June 2017: 3.77%)

7,500 Aisin Seiki Co Lid a7, ars 022
30,300 Bridgestone Corp 131,250 0.76
1,900 Daikyonishikawa Corp 3,084 0.02
20,300 Denso Corp 109,864 0.64
9,700 JTEKT Corp 14,628 0.09
5,500 Koito Manufacturing Co Lid 40,260 024
1,700 Mitsuba Corp 1,510 001
11,200 MNGK Insulators Lid 22088 013
7,800 MNGK Spark Flug Co Lid 24 648 014
9,000 MNHK Spring Co Lid 9,396 0.06
3,400 Nifco Inc 11,662 0.07
1,900 Missin Kogyo Co Litd 3722 0.02
4900 MNOK Corp 10,506 0.06
7,000 Stanley Electric Co Ltd 26,460 0.16
33,800 Sumitomao Electric Industries Lid 55,770 033
9,000 Sumitomo Rubber Industries Lid 15,840 0.09
5,400 Toyo Tire & Rubber Co Lid 8,753 0.05
3,300 Toyoda Gosei Co Lid 9,270 0.05
2,700 Toyota Boshoku Corp 5,505 0.03
7,400 Toyota Industries Corp 45954 027
1,000 TPR Co Lid 2581 0.02
2,100 TS Tech Co Lid 9,713 0.06
5,300 Yokohama Rubber Co Lid 12,206 0.07
612,505 3.59
Banks: 5.68% (30 June 2017: 7.46%)

5,400 Apzora Bank Lid 22761 013
32,000 Chiba Bank Ltd 25,056 0.15
8,300 Chugoku Bank Lid 9,304 0.05
54,000 Concordia Financial Group Lid 30,456 018
18,300 Gunma Bank Lid 10,651 0.06
13,300 Hiroshima Bank Lid 9,815 0.06
6,000 Hokuhoku Financial Group Inc 8,850 0.05
19,700 Kyushu Financial Group Inc 10,540 0.06
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Banks: 5.68% (30 June 2017: 7.46%) (continued)

296,200 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 186,932 1.10
1,178,600 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 219,800 129
90,100 Resona Holdings Inc 53,727 034
33,900 Seven Bank Lid 11,4582 0.07
7,400 Shinsei Bank Lid 12,624 0.07
22,800 Shizuoka Bank Lid 22823 013
52,200 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 224 773 1.33
17,700 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 77,756 0.46
9,200 Suruga Bank Lid 9,117 0.05
1,200 Tokyo Kiraboshi Financial Group Inc 3,183 0.02
11,000 Yamaguchi Financial Group Inc 13,728 0.08
068,407 5.68

Beverages: 1.60% (30 June 2017: 1.15%)
19,200 Asahi Group Holdings Lid 108,502 0.64
44 100 Kirin Holdings Co Lid 130,668 077
7,000 Suntory Beverage & Food Lid 33,110 019
272,680 1.60

Building Materials: 1.75% (30 June 2017: 1.63%)

9,300 AGC Inc 40,129 024
12,500 Daikin Industries Ltd 166,875 0.98
1,600 Rinnai Comp 15,632 0.09
8,700 Sanwa Holdings Corp 10,214 0.06
18,000 Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Lid 9,342 0.05
5,800 Taihelyo Cement Corp 21,144 012
7,000 TOTO Lid 35,980 o
298,313 1.75

Chemicals: 4.83% (30 June 2017: 4.89%)
2,700 Aica Kogyo Co Lid 10,503 0.06
7,900 Air Water Inc 16,069 0.09

50,800 Asahi Kasei Corp 84198 049
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

As at 30 June 2018
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets
Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Chemicals: 4.83% (30 June 2017: 4.89%) (continued)

12,900 Daicel Corp 15,815 0.09
3,500 Denka Co Lid 12,932 0.08
3,800 DIC Comp 13,148 0.08
4,700 Hitachi Chemical Co Lid 10,504 0.06
9,600 JSR Comp 18,106 o1

10,100 Kansai Paint Co Ltd 23,250 014

16,100 Kuraray Co Lid 24 569 014

64,200 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 579,539 0.35
7,900 Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Co Inc 19,829 012
8,700 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 25 665 015
4900 Mihon Parkerizing Co Lid 7.820 0.05
6,200 Nippon Kayaku Co Lid 7,682 0.05
7,400 Nippon Paint Holdings Co Lid 35,298 o
5,600 Missan Chemical Corp 28,952 017
6,900 Nitto Denko Corp A7,843 034
3,700 MNOF Corp 13,246 0.08

15,900 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 156,981 091

71,000 Sumitomo Chemical Co Lid 44 588 0.26
7,400 Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corp 11,751 0.07
7,900 Teijin Lid 16,053 0.09

69,500 Toray Industries Inc 60,743 0.36

13,900 Tosoh Corp 23,866 014
4,800 Ube Industries Lid 13,819 0.08
8,100 Feon Corp 10,611 0.06

823,380 4.83

Commercial Services: 0.98% (30 June 2017: 0.92%)

1,100 Agon Delight Co Lid 4147 0.02
1,300 Kanamoto Co Lid 4 557 0.03
1,000 Meitec Corp 5,320 0.03
6,000 Mihon M&A Center Inc 19,250 011
5,200 Park24 Co Lid 15,678 0.09
&,100 Persol Holdings Co Lid 20,015 012
9,300 Secom Co Lid 7,115 047
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Nominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Commercial Services: 0.98% (30 June 2017: 0.92%) (continued)

3,500 Sohgo Security Services Co Ltd 18,270 o1
166,392 0.98

Computers: 1.72% (30 June 2017: 1.41%)
800 Elecom Co Ltd 2073 001

94,000 Fuijitsu Lid 63,149 0.38
4000 Itochu Techno-Solutions Corp 7,656 0.04

11,800 MEC Corp 35,872 o
5,700 Momura Research Institute Ltd 30,609 018
1,400 NS Solutions Corp 3,910 0.02

27,900 NTT Data Corp 35,600 o
2,800 Ohic Co Lid 25676 015
5,400 Otsuka Corp 23,463 014
2,100 SCSK Corp 10,815 0.06
4,800 TDK Corp 54 336 032

293,159 1.72
Cosmetics & Personal Care: 2.94% (30 June 2017: 1.98%)
1,100 Ci:z Holdings Co Lid 5,797 0.03

22,500 Kao Corp 190,125 112
1,500 Kose Corp 35,805 o

12,800 Lion Corp 25984 015
5,500 Pigeon Corp 29,645 017

17,000 Shiseido Co Lid 149 566 0.88

19,400 Unicharm Corp 64,660 0.38

501,582 2.94
Distribution & Wholesale: 4.19% (30 June 2017: 3.64%)

66,100 ITOCHU Corp 132 6586 078
2,000 Iwatani Corp T.720 0.05
3,800 Kanematsu Corp 6,084 0.04

74,100 Marubeni Corp 62,622 037

63,200 Mitsubishi Corp 184,530 113

74,400 Mitsui & Co Ltd 137,454 0.80
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Nominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Distribution & Wholesale: 4.19% (30 June 2017: 3.64%) (continued)

1,700 Mippon Gas Co Lid 10,982 0.06
53,300 Sajitz Corp 21427 013
56,900 Sumitomao Corp 103,558 0.61
10,100 Toyota Tsusho Corp ar4am 022

714,544 4.19
Diversified Financial Services: 2.40% (30 June 2017: 2.63%)

6,400 AEOM Financial Senvice Co Lid 15,130 0.09
77,000 Daiwa Securities Group Inc 49 534 029

2,900 Financial Products Group Co Lid 4144 0.02

1,000 Fuyo General Lease Co Lid 7,620 0.04

2,500 Hitachi Capital Corp 7.160 0.04

1,700 IBJ Leasing Co Lid 4981 0.03
12,900 Ichigo Inc 6,708 0.04
26,000 Japan Exchange Group Inc 53,51 0

4.400 Matsui Securities Co Lid 4 660 0.03
46,900 Mebuki Financial Group Inc 17,447 010
22,900 Mitsubishi UFJ Lease & Finance Co Lid 15,585 0.09

155,300 Momura Holdings Inc 83,582 049
19,500 Orient Corp 2,905 0.02
60,200 ORIX Corp 105,470 0.63
10,000 Tokai Tokyo Financial Holdings Inc 7.080 0.04

1,800 Tokyo Century Corp 11,304 0.07

2,500 Zenkoku Hosho Co Lid 12,575 0.07

409,429 2.40

Electric: 0.92% (30 June 2017: 0.59%)

28,000 Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 46,508 027
7,300 Electric Power Development Co Ltd 20,878 012
37,300 Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 60,277 0.36
21,400 Tohoku Electric Power Co Inc 28,954 017
156,617 0.92
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Mominal

Fair Value % of Total
JPY 000 Net Assets

11,200
7,400

7,900

2,800
1,575
3,100
18,500
2,000
15,000
17,000
9,600
11,000
9,700
1,700
9,200

3,700

3,100
2,400
30,700
12,200
31,400

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.22% (30 June 2017: 1.10%)

Brother Industries Lid
Casio Computer Co Ltd

Electronics: 4.49% (30 June 2017: 4.99%)
Alps Electric Co Lid

Fujitsu General Lid

Hirose Eleciric Co Lid

Hitachi High-Technologies Corp
Horiba Lid

Hoya Corp

Japan Aviation Electronics Industry Ltd
Kyocera Corp

MINEBEA MITSUMI Inc

Murata Manufacturing Co Ltd

Midec Corp

QOmron Corp

SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd

Yokogawa Electric Corp

Engineering & Construction: 1.58% (30 June 2017: 1.38%)

COMSY'S Holdings Corp
Hazama Ando Corp

Kajima Corp

Kumagai Gumi Co Lid

Kyowa Exeo Corp

Kyudenko Corp

Maeda Corp

Maeda Road Construction Co Lid
Mippo Corp

Ohbayashi Corp

Penta-Ocean Construction Co Lid
Shimizu Corp

24,506 0.14
13,335 0.08
37,841 0.22
22,483 0.13

4,855 0.03
21,625 0.13
14,012 0.08
13,950 0.08

116,531 0.68

3,490 0.02
93,705 0.55
31,858 0.19

178,752 1.05

182 875 1.07
50,149 0.29
13,260 0.08
18,142 0.1

765,687 4.49
10,580 0.06

8,064 0.05
38,610 0.23
6,224 0.04
10,763 0.06
10,700 0.06
9,300 0.05
6,532 0.04
4,848 0.03
35,397 0.21
9,052 0.05
36,079 0.21
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Engineering & Construction: 1.58% (30 June 2017: 1.38%) (continued)

7,460 Sumitomo Mitsui Construction Co Ltd 5,752 0.03
10,200 Taisei Comp 62,322 037
12,000 Toda Corp 11,568 0.07

3,900 Tokyu Construction Co Ltd 4,200 0.02

269,991 1.58

Entertainment: 0.87% (30 June 2017: 0.60%)

2,800 Heiwa Corp 7,487 0.04
10,300 Oriental Land Co Lid 119,737 0.70
5,900 Toho Co Ltd 21,918 013
149,142 0.87

Food: 2.94% (30 June 2017: 2.84%)

21,100 Ajinomoto Co Inc 44 226 0.26
4.200 Calbee Inc 17,493 010
2,600 Ezaki Glico Co Ltd 13,832 0.08
5,100 Kewpie Comp 14,244 0.08
6,700 Kikkoman Corp 37,453 022

600 Kobe Bussan Co Lid 3,276 0.02
6,100 MELI Holdings Co Ltd 56,974 033
4,000 NH Foods Ltd 17,900 010
4,400 Nichirei Corp 12,399 007

11,500 Nippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 6,279 0.04
3,600 Nissin Foods Holdings Co Ltd 28,836 017

37,800 Sewven & i Holdings Co Ltd 182,612 1.08
5,000 Toyo Suisan Kaisha Ltd 19,725 012
5,400 Yakult Honsha Co Ltd 39,960 0.23
1,000 Yaoko Co Lid 6,110 0.04

501,319 2.04

Forest Products & Paper: 0.26% (30 June 2017: 0.25%)
3,800 Daio Paper Corp 5,860 0.03
40,000 Oji Holdings Corp 27,480 017
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Forest Products & Paper: 0.26% (30 June 2017: 0.25%) (continued)

6,600 Sumitomo Forestry Co Lid 11,068 0.06
44 408 0.26
Gas: 0.68% (30 June 2017: 0.64%)
17,800 Osaka Gas Co Lid 40,806 024
4 500 Toho Gas Co Ltd 17,257 010
19,500 Tokyo Gas Co Lid A7,340 034
115,403 0.68
Hand & Machine Tools: 0.72% (30 June 2017; 1.35%)
1,200 Disco Corp 22 692 013
5,000 DMG Mori Co Lid 7,685 0.05
28,000 Fuiji Eleciric Co Ltd 23,632 014
11,900 Makita Corp 59,084 034
4200 08G Comp 9,580 0.06
122,682 0.72
Healthcare Products: 1.67% (30 June 2017: 1.33%)
4.400 Asahi Intecc Co Lid 18,436 o1
3,800 Nihon Kohden Comp 11,723 0.07
13,600 Olympus Corp 56,440 033
10,900 Shimadzu Corp 36,515 o
7,100 Sysmex Corp 73414 043
14,000 Terumo Corp 838,900 052
285428 1.67
Healthcare Services: 0.06% (30 June 2017: 0.07%)
1,200 Ain Holdings Inc 9,804 0.06
49,804 0.06

Home Builders: 1.47% (30 June 2017: 1.45%)

30,300 Daiwa House Industry Co Ltd 114,413 0.67
12,000 Haseko Corp 18,372 011
7,500 lida Group Holdings Co Lid 16,028 0.09
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Home Builders: 1.47% (30 June 2017: 1.45%) (continued)

19,700 Sekisul Chemical Co Ltd 37194 022
33,400 Sekisul House Ltd 65,464 038
251,41 1.47

Home Furnishings: 2.89% (30 June 2017: 1.11%)

5,000 Clarion Co Lid 1,450 001
2,900 Hoshizaki Corp 32,500 019
104,600 Panasonic Corp 156,220 092
53,500 Sony Corp 303,024 177
493,243 2.89

Household Products & Wares: 0.06% (30 June 2017: 0.04%)
1,600 Filot Corp 9,872 0.06
09,872 0.06

Insurance; 2.93% (30 June 2017; 3.15%)

51,100 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 100,574 0.59
23,600 M3&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 81,278 048
17,700 Sompo Holdings Inc 79,296 047
7,400 Sony Financial Holdings Inc 15,658 0.09
27,900 T&D Holdings Inc 46,440 027
34,000 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 176,562 1.03
500,208 2.93

Internet: 1.60% (30 June 2017: 1.56%)

5,400 CyberAgent Inc 35,964 021
1,200 Dip Corp 3416 0.02
3,300 GMO internet Inc 8,709 0.05
5,800 kabu.com Securiies Co Ltd 2082 0.01
6,600 Kakaku.com Inc 16,513 010
9,200 M3 Inc 40,618 0.24
3,200 MonotaRO Co Lid 15,680 0.09
44,800 Rakuten Inc 33,573 0.20
10,200 5Bl Holdings Inc 29,111 017
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Mominal

Fair Value % of Total
JPY 000 Net Assets

8,900

4,400
64,700

9,700
24,400
40,500

1,800
3,700
6,200

12,900

3,700

14,000
4,700
1,100
3,800
8,700
1,400
4,500

49,100

15,300
5,000

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Internet: 1.60% (30 June 2017: 1.56%) (continued)

Start Today Co Ltd
Trend Micro Inc
Yahoo Japan Corp

Iron & Steel: 0.91% (30 June 2017: 1.16%)

Hitachi Metals Lid

JFE Holdings Inc

Mippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Corp
Tokyo Steel Manufacturing Co Lid

Leisure Time: 0.83% (30 June 2017: 0.89%)

Daiichikosho Co Ltd
Shimano Inc

Yamaha Corp
Yamaha Motor Co Lid

Lodging: 0.04% (30 June 2017: 0.05%)

Resorttrust Inc

35,734 021
27,808 016
23,810 014
273,018 1.60
11,155 0.07
51,142 0.30
83,108 0.5
4,822 0.03
155,227 0.9
8,630 0.06
60,162 035
35,712 021
35,939 021
141,443 0.83
7,252 0.04
7,252 0.04

Machinery — Diversified: 5.28% (30 June 2017: 2.43%)

Amada Holdings Co Lid
Daifuku Co Lid

Eagle Industry Co Ltd

Ebara Comp

FANUC Comp

Harmonic Drive Systems Inc
Keyence Corp

Kubota Corp

Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Lid
Mabtesco Corp

14,910 0.09
22818 013
1,960 0.01
13,091 0.08
191,443 1.12
6,566 0.04
281,520 1.65
85,581 0.50
61,674 0.36
17,050 010
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Machinery — Diversified: 5.28% (30 June 2017: 2.43%) (continued)

H00 Obara Group Inc 3,160 0.02
2,900 SMC Corp 17,827 0.69
5,200 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 19,448 o1
5,700 THK Co Lid 18,087 o1
5,000 Tsubakimoto Chain Co 4,400 0.03

10,600 Yaskawa Electric Corp 41,459 024
901,044 h.28

Machinery Construction & Mining: 2.77% (30 June 2017: 2.65%)

4,300 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 15,430 0.09
220,000 Hitachi Ltd 171,952 1.1
44,200 Komatsu Lid 140,026 0.82
91,500 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 134,917 0.79
4,400 Tadano Ltd 5,938 0.04
1,500 Takeuchi Manufacturing Co Ltd 3,498 0.02
471,861 2.77

Media: 0.09% (30 June 2017: 0.09%)

8,200 Nippon Television Holdings Inc 15,326 0.09
15,326 0.09

Metal Fabricate & Hardware: 0.39% (30 June 2017: 0.46%)
1,700 Hanwa Co Lid 7,183 0.04
10,500 MISUMI Group Inc 33,915 0.20
T00 Mippon Steel & Sumikin Bussan Corp 3,850 0.02
18,800 MSK Lid 21,488 013
66,436 0.39

Mining: 0.48% (30 June 2017: 0.43%)

2,300 Dowa Holdings Co Lid 7,854 0.05
6,000 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 18,270 011
26,400 Mippon Light Metal Holdings Co Lid 6,574 0.04
11,600 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Lid 49,161 028
81,859 0.48
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Office & Business Equipment: 1.50% (30 June 2017: 1.47%)

49,300 Canon Inc 179,008 1.06
21,400 Konica Minoita Inc 2201 013
27,500 Ricoh Co Ltd 27,940 016
13,600 Seiko Epson Corp 26,194 015
255,163 1.50
Oil & Gas: 0.34% (30 June 2017: 0.34%)

49,900 Inpex Corp 57,360 0.34
57,360 0.34

Pharmaceuticals: 6.05% (30 June 2017: 5.71%)

10,000 Alfresa Holdings Corp 26,050 015
90,200 Astellas Pharma Inc 152 348 0.89
9,500 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Lid 55,195 032
26,200 Daiichi Sankyo Co Lid 111,009 0.65
10,900 Eisai Co Ltd 85,064 0.50
2,700 Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Co Inc 25245 015
1,600 Kaken Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 9104 0.05
2,600 Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co Lid 24 882 015
11,500 Kyowa Hakko Kirin Co Lid 25679 015
9,000 Medipal Holdings Corp 20,052 012
11,200 Mitsubishi Tanabe Pharma Corp 21,437 013
21,600 Ono Pharmaceutical Co Lid 56,085 033
19,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Lid 101,916 0.60
17,300 Santen Pharmaceutical Co Lid 33,406 0.20
1,800 Sawai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 9,072 0.05
13,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 73,083 043
1,800 Ship Healthcare Holdings Inc 7,042 0.05
6,800 Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma Co Ltd 15,846 0.09
33,700 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Lid 157,649 0.93
2,700 Toho Holdings Co Lid 7,298 0.04
3,300 Tsumura & Co 11,814 0.07
1,031,186 6.05
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Private Equity: 0.03% (30 June 2017: 0.04%)

1,300 Jafco Co Lid 5,856 0.03
5,856 0.03

Real Estate: 3.11% (30 June 2017: 3.10%)
5,800 Agon Mall Co Lid 11,542 0.07
3,700 Daito Trust Construction Co Lid 66,637 0.39
18,800 Hulic Co Ltd 22240 013
10,800 Leopalace21 Comp 6,556 0.04
67,200 Mitsubishi Estate Co Lid 130,166 075
45,100 Mitsui Fudosan Co Lid 120,587 07
6,000 Momura Real Estate Holdings Inc 14,748 0.09
5,600 NTT Urban Development Corp 6,664 0.04
1,500 Open Houss Co Lid 9,840 0.06
1,200 Pressance Comp 2054 0.m
4,800 Relo Group Inc 14,035 0.08
1,200 Starts Corp Inc 3,241 0.02
22,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Lid 89,958 053
9,900 Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd 15,058 0.09
21,800 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Comp 17,048 010
530,384 3N

Retail: 3.41% (30 June 2017: 2.89%)

1,600 ABC-Mart Inc 9 696 0.06
1,400 Adastria Co Lid 1,967 0.01
34,700 Aeon Co Lid 82234 0.49
4,900 Bic Camera Inc 8,374 0.05
500 Cosmos Phammaceutical Corp 11,240 0.07
1,300 Create SD Holdings Co Lid 4141 0.02
5,800 Don Quijote Holdings Co Lid 30,856 018
2,800 FamilyMart UNY Holdings Co Lid 33814 0.20
1,300 Fast Retailing Co Lid 66,183 0.39
1,600 Izumi Co Lid 10,960 0.06
10,800 J Front Retailing Co Lid 18,220 0.1
7,500 K's Holdings Corp 9,093 0.05
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Retail: 3.41% (30 June 2017: 2.89%) (continued)

700 Kusuri no Aoki Holdings Co Lid 5159 0.03
2,300 Lawson Inc 15,916 0.09
3,700 Matsumaotokiyoshi Holdings Co Lid 18,408 011
3,600 Nitori Holdings Co Litd 62,208 0.36
1,600 MNojima Corp 3.941 0.02
1,200 Ryohin Keikaku Co Ltd 46,800 027
1,400 Seiko Holdings Corp 3,338 0.02
2,200 Seria Co Ltd 11,704 0.07
1,000 Shimamura Co Ltd 8,750 0.06
2,000 Sugi Holdings Co Lid 12,820 0.08
3,800 Sundrug Co Lid 17,062 010

14,000 Takashimaya Co Ltd 13,272 0.08
2,000 Tsuruha Holdings Inc 27,780 016
1,100 United Arrows Ltd 4,554 0.03

10,700 USS Co Lid 22 556 013
2,100 Valor Holdings Co Lid 5,307 0.03
2,400 Welcia Holdings Co Ltd 14,136 0.08

581,494 3N

Semiconductors: 1.03% (30 June 2017: 0.52%)

5,100 Advantest Comp 11,771 0.07
6,700 Hamamatsu Photonics KK 31,8582 019
200 MuFlare Technology Inc 1,362 0.m
4700 Renesas Electronics Corp 5,104 0.03
6,100 Tokyo Electron Lid 116,022 0.68
2,100 Ulvac Inc 8,504 0.05
175,055 1.03

Software: 0.67% (30 June 2017: 0.30%)
2,600 COLOPL Inc 1,950 0.01
4,700 DeNA Co Lid 9,762 0.06
24,300 GungHo Online Entertainment Inc 6,853 0.04
3,700 Konami Holdings Corp 20,868 012
2,200 Mixi Inc 6,169 0.04
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Software: 0.67% (30 June 2017: 0.30%)

20,200 Mexon Co Lid 32,502 019
1,500 Oracle Corp Japan 13,575 0.08
4 200 Square Enix Holdings Co Lid 22 848 013

114,527 0.67
Telecommunications: 4.95% (30 June 2017:; 4.92%)

1,100 Hikari Tsushin Inc 2147 013
73,100 KDDI Corp 221,566 1.30
40,500 Mippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 203,958 1.20
64,600 NTT DoCoMo Inc 182 333 1.07
26,600 SoftBank Group Corp 212,082 124

400 T-Gaia Corp 2547 0.01
843,903 4.95

Toys & Games: 0.29% (30 June 2017: 0.26%)
9,500 Bandai Mamco Holdings Inc 43415 0.26
2,500 Sanrio Co Lid 5,365 0.03
48,780 0.29

Transportation: 5.22% (30 June 2017: 4.76%)

8,200 Central Japan Railway Co 188,272 1.1
16,400 East Japan Railway Co 174,087 1.02
11,600 Hankyu Hanshin Holdings Inc 51,678 0.30

1,900 Hitachi Transport System Lid 5,392 0.03

5,100 Keihan Holdings Co Lid 20,272 012

5,100 Keio Corp 27,336 0.16

6,400 Keisei Electric Railway Co Lid 24 352 014

&,700 Kintetsu Group Holdings Co Lid 39,324 023

9,200 Magoya Railroad Co Lid 26,312 015

5,500 Mankai Electric Railway Co Lid 16,912 0.10

3,400 Mippon Express Co Ltd 27,336 0.16

3,400 Mishi-Mippon Railroad Co Litd 10,251 0.06
13,600 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Lid 3234 0.19

2,200 Sankyu Inc 12,804 0.08
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Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2018

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets

Commeon Stock: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Japan: 98.25% (30 June 2017: 92.87%) (continued)
Transportation: 5.22% (30 June 2017: 4.76%) (continued)

11,700 Seibu Holdings Inc 21,856 013
3,900 Sotetsu Holdings Inc 13,21 0.08
9,700 Tobu Raitway Co Ltd 32,833 019

24,900 Tokyu Corp 47,509 028
8,300 West Japan Railway Co 67,761 040

15,200 Yamato Holdings Co Lid 49,613 029

889,512 5.22
Total Common Stock 16,752,880 98.25

Open Futures Contracts*(0.03)% (30 June 2017: 0.04%)

Mo of Awverage Unrealised Gain % of Total
contracts cost price JPY'000  Net Assets
JPX-Mikkei Index 400 Futuras
180 15,500 September 2018 (5,580) (0.03)
Total Unrealised Loss on Futures Contract (5,580) {0.03)
Total investments at fair value through profit or
loss 16,747,300 098.22
Cash and cash equivalent 198,838 1.16
Cash at broker 108,958 0.64
Other assets and liahilities (3,293) (0.02)
Met assets attributable to holders of redeemable
units 17,051,803 100.00

*The broker for Futures Contracts is Mizuho Securities Singapore.
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2018 10

16,226,993,774

15,545,312

16,211,448,463

1,127,400

14,379.50
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2018 10
2,500 28 3,150
25,000,001 25,000,000

2006
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AIFM AIFMD FCA

FCA J.P.

AIFM

AIFMD
2018 10

2018 10

14 1,132
17 914
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2017 12 31
2017 2016

11 1,236,755 140,075 492,606 55,793
12 17,004,256 1,925,902 18,481,991 2,003,270
18,241,011 2,065,977 18,974,597 2,149,063

13 (1,495,751) (169,409) (937,015) (106,126)
16,745,260 1,896,568 18,037,582 2,042,937
16,745,260 1,896,568 18,037,582 2,042,937

14 25,000,002 2,831,500 25,000,002 2,831,500
34,864 3,949 34,864 3,949

(8,289,606) (938,881) (6,997,284) (792,512)
16,745,260 1,896,568 18,037,582 2,042,937

2018 24

2018 25
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2017 12 31
2017 2016

6 1,813,917 205, 444 2,265,797 256,624

9 (3,108,726) (352,004)  (2,654,788) (300,681)

7 2,487 282 (81,252) (9,203)

8 (1,292,322) (146,368) (470,243) (53,260)
9

(1,292,322) (146,368) (470,243) (53,260)
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J.P.

2017 12 31

e 25,000,002 2,831,500 34,864 3,949  (6,527,041) (739,253) 18,507,825 2,096,196
(470,243)  (53,260) (470,243)  (53,260)

2016 12 31
25,000,002 2,831,500 34,864 3,949  (6,997,284) (792,512) 18,037,582 2,042,937
(1,292,322) (146,368)  (1,292,322)  (146,368)

2017 12 31

25,000,002 2,831,500 34,864 3,949  (8,289,606) (938,881) 16,745,260 1,896,568
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JpP
E14 5JP 25
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 EU
IFRS
2006
FRS 101 EU IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
1AS 79(a) (1v)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
1AS
30 31
1AS 24 1AS 24 17

IAS 24
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a)
b)

4.11

IFRS
2017 2016
3,693,459 2,623,777
(1,879,542) (357,980)
1,813,917 2,265,797
Jp

603,114 2016 1,908,050

205/260



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 2016
2,487 81,252
2017 2016
24,567 19,773
24,055
1,436,386 1,313,945
242,178 199,783
141,404 133,399
227,569 183,554
2016
806,310 2016 488,311 206,256 2016
314,035 2016 1,988
2017 2016
)
()

19.25 2016 20
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(1,292,322) (470,243)
19.25
2016 20 (248,728) (94,049)
2,792 25,971
245,936 68,078
10
2017 2016
. 480,935 459,771
15,261 15,811
LTIP
185,653 49,788
LTIP 1 1
3 3
2006
LTIP
455,276 2016
445,929
14,716 2016 15,398
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11
2017 2016
633,641 30,486
JP 603,114 462,120
1,236,755 492,606
12
JP
13
2017 2016
523,711 284,301
972,040 652,714
1,495,751 937,015
JP
439,542 2016 224,720
14
2017 2016
2016 2 2
25,000,000
2016 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000

25,000,002 25,000,002
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2016 96,251

2015
LTIP
2017 12 31 67 2019

LTI

RSU
50

RSU RSU

SAR
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2017 2016

10

2017 12 31 92.01 2016 65.62

227,569 2016 183,554
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Balance sheet

31 Decembar T 2018
Motes 5 ]
Curront assots
Debiors 11 1,238,755 482 605
Cash and cash equivalent 12 17,004,258 18 48 1 881
18,241,011 18,874,587
Curront [labllities
Credilors: amounts faling due within one year =] [1,885,751) [B2T.015)
Nat current 28 eals 16, 748,280 18,037 582
Mat ansats 16,745,260 18,007,583
Equily
Called-up share capital 14 25,000,002 25,000, 002
Cither reserees 34,864 JMER4
Accumulaled lospes (8.289,908) 5.957.284)
Total equity 16,745,260 18,037,582

The notes on pages 15 - 20 form an intagral part of these fmancal statements.

Lha financial stataments on pages 12 - 20 were approved by the Board of Directors on <211/ 04 18and signed on lts behaif

Mt

Hakthew Hdti.xinﬂ

Director

pate: 2.5 JOU [201F

-13.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement
Vear ended 31 Decombar T 206
Hotes ¥ 5
Oparating income B 1,813,817 2,265,797
Adiminislralive expenses 8 (3,108, T26) {2,664,7TBE)
Other Income{expense) 7 2,487 (81.252)
Loas before Income tax L] 1,292,322) {4T0,243)
Incomie lax ] _— —
Loss for the financial year 1,292,327) 1470,243)

There were no other ilems of comprehensive income or axpense and thersfors, no statement of comprehensive income of expense
has been separately presonted,

The notes on pages 15 - 20 form an integral part of these financial stalements,

=12 =
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Called-up Othor  Accumulated

share capital raserves lozses Tatal equity

Notes § ] 5 ¥

Balanca a= at 1 January 2016 25,000,002 34864 [6,527,041) 18,507,825
Loss far the Fnancial yeas - . (4T0.243) (470,243)
Balance as at 31 Decoember 2078 E£5,000,002 24 B4 (B, BT, 284y 18,037,382
Loss For the Enancial year = — (1,292,322} 1,292,322)
Balance a8 al 31 December 2017 25, 0040, 002 34,864 (8,289, ED&) 18,745,280

Oither reserves relate to share based payment awards granied ko employees by the Company.

The notes on pages 15 - 20 form an integral part of these fnanclal stalements.

- 14-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

1.  General Information

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The Company's immediate panent
undertaking is The Bear Steams Companies LLC, incorparaled in the state of Delaware of the United States of America ("U.5.") The
Company's ultimate parent undertaking, and the parent undertaking of the only group in which the resuks of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the “Firm" or "JPMergan Chase®), which is incorporated in the state of Delaware in the
U.5. The consolidated financial statements of the Firm can be obiained fram tha Company's registered office at 25 Bank Streel,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JF, England and Wales.

2.  Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reparting Standard 101, "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” "FRS 101%). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of Intemanonal Financial Reporing
Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Uinion (“EL") with reduced dischasumes.

The fimancia| statemants have been prepared on a geing concem basis under the historical cost convention and in sccordance with
the Companies Act 2008,

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS as adopled by the EU have baen appliad In the preparation of thess financal
statements, in sccordance with FRS 104:

»  Certain share based payment disclosures in respeet of Group equity instruments (IFRS 2, 'Share-based paymant
paragraphs 45{b) and 48 to 52);

+  Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of 145 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ ("1AS 17) far
reconciliation of share capital (paragraph 73(a)(iv) of 145 1)

«  Statement of compliance to [FRS (paragraph 18, 145 1);
+  Cash flow statement and related noles (IAS 7 Cash flow statements);
*  Disclosures in relation to new or revised standards issued but not yet effectiva {paragraph 30 and 31, IAS 8 'Accounting

poiscies, changes in accounting estmates and emors’);

*  Key management compensation disclosures {paragraph 17, IAS 24 'Ralated Party Disclosures’ ("IAS 24"));

*  Related party transactions with wholly ewned group undertakings (LAS 24);
4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of Fnancial statements generally requires management lo make judgements, astimates and assumptions that affact
the amounts recogrised in the financial statements. Due to the nature of Company's business and balances, na significant accounting
eshimates or judgements ware reguired in preparation of these fnancial statements,
4.  Significant aceounting policies

The fallowing are principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been
apped consisbently to all the years presanted, unless olherwise stated,

4.1 Foraign currency translation

Monetary assets and monatary liabllities in foreign currencies are translated into United States ("U.5.") dollars at rates of gxchange
fuling on the balance sheet date. Income and expense fams dencmnated in foreign currencies are franslated into U.S. dollars at
exchange rates pravailing at the date of the transactons, Any gans or losses ansing on transkation are taken direclly 1o tha income
stgiement,

Nom-manatary items dencminated in foresgn currencies that are stated at historical cost are translated into U5, dollass attha exchange
rate rulng at the dase of the transaction.

4.2 Functional and presentation currency

ltarns included In the fnancial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the PRMANy Sconomic envirenment
E;I'Iﬁ;::'l:ﬁ entity operates (the “functional currancy”). U.S. dollars is considered as the functional and presentation currency of the
4.3 Income and expense recognition

Fees and commissions are recognised when the underlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed due date if later,
Expenses are rﬂmg'ﬁsad.nhan the underlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed due data if latar,

-5 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies (continuwed)
4.4 Provisions and contingent liabllities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive cbi'gation as a resull of past events, @ is probable
that an outfliow of rmsources embodying economic banefies will be required to settie the obligation, and a relable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can ba mada.

Acontingent llab ity is 3 possible oblgation that arises from past events and whose exis tence will ba confirmed only by the occurrence
or nan-eccumence of one of more uncertain fufure events not wholly withn the conrol of the company, or a present obigatian thal
arizes from pest events but is not recogn sed because either an outflow of economic benefits (s not probable or the amount of the
ahligation cannot be rel akly measured, Contngent liabilities ane not recognised In the Anancial statements; however disclosure is
made unless the probability of setilement = remate,

4.5 Penslons and other post-retirement benefits
Tha Company operates a defined contribution scheme for its employees.

A defined condribubon plan 5 @ pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributons into a separate entity. The Company
has no lagal or constructve obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does mat hold suficient assets o pay all employess
the benalits refating to employes sandce in the current and prior periods, Cbligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plans are recognised as 8n expense and charged (o the income statement on an accnusl basis.

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may b made lo employees of the Company under the Firm's incentive awards schemes. The fair
valua af amy such shares, rights to shares or share oplions is measured when the conditional award is made. This value s recogrised
as the compensalion expense o the Company over the pariod to which the performance eriteria relate together with employer's
social secunty expenses or other payroll taxes. All of the awards grantad are equity settled. The Company estimates the level of
forfeitures and apphes this forfeiture rale at the grand date,

Additionally, the conditions that must be satisfied before an employee becomes entitled to equity instruments under the Firm's
incentwe programs it taken into considaration. The Firm's Retrement Eligibility rules for restricted stock awarded as part of incentive:
programs requine the accelaration of the amortisaton of the award such that the award is fully expensed al the tims the refirement
eligibilty comes into force.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances at banks and koans and advances to banks with maturities of three manths
of lass,

4.8 Current and deferred Income tax

Income tax payable on laxable profits (cument tax) is recognised a3 an expense in the period in which the profits arise. Income tax
recovarable on b aliowable losses is recognised as 3 current ta x asset only (o the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset
against taxable profits arising in the current or prior period. Gurrent tax is measured weing tax rates and 1ax laws that have been
anacied or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Daferrad tax & provided in full, using the lisbility methad, on (empaorary diffierences arising from the differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabillies and thesr carmying amounts in the inancial stalements. Deferrad tax s determined wsing tax rates and
leglsiation enacted or subsiantively enacted by the balance sheet date, which are axpected to apply when the deferred tax asset Is
realisad or lhe defarred tax latility i setiled. Defemed tax assets and Nabilites are only offset when there s both a legal right and
an intant on to seftle an a nel basis,

4.9 Financlal asaats and financlal labilites

The Cempany classifies its fnancial assets and financlal Habiliies as financisl sssets and financial liabiities at amortised cost. The
Company recognises a financial azset or a financ sl hability on its balance sheal when it bacomes party to the contractual proAdsions
af the instrumant. Debbors and creditors balances are recognised initially 21 fair value and subsequently measured al amonised cost,
4,10 Derecognition of financial assets and financial Habillties

Firancial assets ane derecognised when fhe contrachual g ht o recaive cash flows from the asset has expired, or has been transferrad
wilh gither of the fallowing condibons med

a) the Company has transfemred substantially all the risks and rewands of ownership of the assat; of

=16-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

4.  Significant accounting policles (continued)
410 Derecognition of financial assels and financial Nabliities (continuad)

b) the Company has neither retained nor transfermed substantially all of the risks and rewards: but has refinquished controd of the
agsal.

Financial liabilies are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is when the oblgation is discharged, cancelled or Bxpires.
4.11 Impaiment of financlal assats

The Company assesses ai each balance sheet date whether there is any abjective evidence that a financial ssset or parthalia of
financizl assets is impaired. A financial assed or portislio of financial assets is deemed to be impalred If, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment 25 a result of one or more events that has occurmed after the indiial recognition of the asset and that event
(or events) has an adversa impact on the estimated future cash Bows of the financial assat or group of firancial assets that can be
rediably estimated.

5. Segmental analysis

The Company is not in scope of IFRS 8 'Operaling segments’, as its debt or aquity instruments are nat raded en & public marke!,
therefore segmantal analysis of the Company's revanus and assafs is nat necessary. The Company's achviiies comprise anly one
business segmant, namely Corporate Invesiment Banking services,

6 Operating Income

2017 ame

H H

Fee and commission Income 3,683 455 28623777
Fes: and commission expenses (1,875,542) (357 Bamy
1,813,197 2,265 79T

Fa@s and commissions income reprasents foes for risk management and strategic assat management services, via its fund solutions
busingas. Income for cument year includes i2es received of $603,114 (2016: $1,208,050) from cther JPMorgan Chase undertakings
pentaning (o backstop agreements. Fees and commission expenses includes operal ng costs paid by the Company on behalf of the
fund. This arangement may include to pay all the expanses o those expenses exceeding spacific imit which has been agreed Lpon.

The Company has disclosed operating income instead of lumover as this reflects more accuretely the resule and nature of the
Company's activities.

7. Dther incomelexpense

F ok 2018
5 $
Forelgn exchange anslation gaini{loss) ZA8T #1.252)
8. Loss before incoma tax
2017 2016
% ¥
Loss bedore Income Lax is stabid afer changing
Auditors' remuneration Tor the audh of the Company's annusl inancal slataments 24 5ET 18,773
Audil-relabed assurance sensces 24,055 .-
Wages and salares. 1,436,386 1,313,545
Social secunty costs 242178 196,783
Oiher pension and benefit costs 141,404 133,390
Share based payments 27,560 183,554

The average monthly number of persons providing services to tha Company during the: year was & (2016; B).

17 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Loas bofore income tax (sontinued)

Adminisirative expenses Include professional fees of $B06,310 (2016 $488,311), other expenses of 5206, 258 (2018: 5314,035|
wirite off of fived assets of Nil (2016 $1,588).

9, Income tax
2017 2016

{a) Analysis of tax charge for the yoar

Currant taxation
UK Corparation tax on loss for fhe year

Total tex expense for lhe year

(b} Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

Thi tax charge for the year differs from the standard rate of comporation tax in the UK 18.26% (2018: 20%). The differances
are explained below,

Loss before ncome |&x (1,292,322) (470,243)
Loss bafone income lax mullipied by standand rale ol UK corporation lax 19.25% [2016: 20%) (248,728) (54,0459)
Effacts of:
Man deductible popanses 2,752 25971
Leas sumenderad for nil consideration 245918 58,078
Total kax expensa for e year —_ _—
10. Directors' emoluments and staff costs
2M7 IME
§ $
Emolumesnis® 480,535 458,771
Total contribulions 1o & defined contribution plan 16,261 15811
Tatal value of kang fesm ncentive plans {LTIPS) (ncluding defermed cach) Tor all directors 185,653 45,788
Mumber of direciors with shares recaived or receivable under LTIPs 1 1
Mumbes of direcdors 1o whom defined conldbution pension richis accrued 3 3

*Thia amounts shown above in respect of emoluments paid to directors exclude amounts paid or due to directors under bang tenrm
incentive plans, the value of share options granted or exercised and benafits 1o which directors are entithed ender any pension

schames,

In accordance with the Companies Aci 2008, the dirsciors' emoluments above represant the proporton pald or payable in
respect of qualifying services only. Directors also received emolements. for non-gualifying sarvices, which are not required to
ez disclosad.

Highest paid director

The emoluments (sxcludng amounts paid or due to direciors under long teem incentve plans ("LTIPs") and the value of share options
granted or exarcised) of the highest pad direcior were $455 276 (2016: 5445 529).

The contribution to the defined contribubion scheme for the highest pald director duning the year was 514,716 (2016: 515,308),

=1B=-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs {continued)
The highast paid director did not exerciss share oplions during the year (2016 nil).

Shares were received or ane receivable by thr highest paid direelor under long term incentive plans during the year

1. Debtors
TNT 2016
§ §
Trade detdors 633,641 J0A4B6
Amounts owad by JPMorgan Chase underiakings 603,114 452120
1,236,768 492,606
The carrying amount of debtors is considered a reasonable approximation of the fair value.
12. Cash at bank and in hand
All bank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase undertakings,
13. Creditors; ameunts falling dus within one year
2017 2018
$ $
Trade cradilors G231 284,301
Accruals 972,040 652,714
1,488,754 9I7, 045

The carrying amount of creditors is considerad a ressonable approximation of the fair value. Trade creditors and acorusls includes
balances owed to JPMargan Chase undertakings of $439, 542 (2016, §224,720)

14. Called-up shara capital

27 2016
§ 5

I&sisad and fully pahd share capital
1 {2016, 1) Oudinary share of E1 2 2
25,000,000 {2016: 25,000,000) Oedinary shares of $1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

15, Pension costs
The Company parficipates in 8 defined contribution pension scheme in the United Kingdom.

The Company recorded a total pansion expense of $93,268 for the year 2017 (2016: $96,251),

=19-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18, Share based payments
Employee stock-based awards

The ulimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Firm®) has granbed lang-temm stock-baged awards to certain
employees under its LTIPs, as amended and restated sfiective May 18, 2015, Under the tems of the LTIR, asol December 31, 2017,
&7 millian shares of comman stock were available for issuance through May 2019, The LTIP is the only active plan under which the
Firm |s cumenthy granting stock-based meanbve awards, The LTIF, plus prioe Firm plans and plans assumed as the result ofacquisitions,
ars refarred to collectively as the "LTi Plans,” and such plans constitute the Fim's steck-based incentive plans.

The Fimm separataly mcognises compansation expense for each tranche of each award =s if i wens a separate award with its own
westing data. For each ranche granted, compensation expenss is recognised in line with how awards vest from the grant date until
the vesting date of the respeciive tranche, provided that the empéoyess will not bescome full-career eligible during the vesting period.
For awards with full-career elgibility provisions and awards granted with no future substantive service requirament, the Finm actries
the estimated valus of awards expecied to be awarded to employess as of the grant date withaut gving consideration io the impact
of post-employment restrictions, For each tranche granted to employeas who will become full-career eligible during the vesting
period, compensation expense is recognised in line with how awards ves! from the grant date until the earlier of the employee s full-
caresr ligibility date or the vesting date of the respective tranche.

Restricted stock units

Resiricted stock units ("RSUs™) ane awarded at no cost to the reciplent wpon their grant. Generally, RSUs are granted annually and
vest at a rata of 509 after twa years and 50% after three years and are convarted into shares of comman stock a5 of the westing
date. In addiion, RSUs typically include full-career akgibllity provisians, which aliow employeas to continue 1o vest upon voluntany
tarmination, subject to pest-employment and olher restrictions based on age or sanvice-related requinements. Al of these awards
are subject io forfeiture until vested and contain clawback provisions that may resull in cancellation under certain specified
circumstances. RSUs entitle the racipient to receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underlying commaon
stock during the period the RSUSs are outstanding.

Compensation expense for RSUs is measured based on the number of sheres granted multiplled by the stack price at e granit
data, and for employes siock options and SARs. [siock appreciation rights) is measured ai the grant date using the Black-Scholes
valustion model, Compensation expense for these awards |s recognisad in net income as described previoushy,

Broad-based employee stack aptions.

No broad-based employes stock opfions were granted in 2017 orin 2016, In prior years, awards were granted by the Firm
under the Value Sharing Plan, a non-gharsholder-approved plan. For each grant, the exarcise prica was oqual to the Fim's
common stock price on the grant date. The options becoms exercisable over various periods and generatly expire 10 years

alter the grant daba.

The welghted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2017 was $52.01 (21& $65.62),

Compensation expense relatad to stock-based Incentives

The total expense for the year relating ta share based payments was $227,560 (2016 §183,554), all ef which relates to aquity setted
share basad payments.
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Intertrust
Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited
(
2018 10 546,964.88 6,195
(
KY1-
9005 190
26 36 1,800

State Street
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

(
2017 10 490,917 6,305
2018 10 31
128.43
(
78
State
Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited
(
2017 10 280,524 3,603
(
78
Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(
2018 10 173 6,300
(
107-6242

2018 20 3,470
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JP
(
2018 10 73,272
(
JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

Fund Services (lreland) Limited

JP

J.P.
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Independent Auditor's Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the sub-funds Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei 225 Fund, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei 400 Fund and
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund (together the “sub-funds’) of the PASS IM Trust (or the “Trust”), , which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2018, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity/net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the related notes to the financial
statements. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financia position of the sub-funds as
at 30 June 2018 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“1FRS").

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust’s unitholders as a body and for regulatory filing
purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SA™). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsihilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA will always
detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Trust's ability to continue as agoing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.

Grant Thornton
Cayman Idands
Chartered Accountants

Dae: 21 December 2018

254/260



J.P.

J.P.

2017 12 31

FRS

2006

2017 12 31

I1SA
I1SA

FRC

1SA

12

255/260

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)

101

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006

I1SA

2017 12 31

1SA

256/260



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FRC
www.frc.org.uk/auditors responsibilities

2006 16

2006

2006

2018 25

257/260



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditors "report to the members of J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited

Report on the audit of the flnanclal statements

Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited's financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its loss for the year then
ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, compr15in g FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework", and applicable law): and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the "Annual
Report"), which comprise: the Balance sheet; the Income statement, the Statementof changes in equity; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance ,w th International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibl1litfes under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilitiesfor the audit of the financial statemenst
section of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We remained independentof the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements In the UK, which includes the FRC's EthicalStandard,and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other Infonnatlon

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infom  tion and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially miss tated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information.If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors'Report,we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been induded.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.
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Independent auditors"report to the members of J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (continued)
Reporting on other Infonnatlon (continued)

Strategic Report and Directors'Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in 1h e course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 1s consi stent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatementsin the Strategic Report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibllilies of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statementof directors'responsibilities set out on page8, thedirectors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financialstatements, the directorsare responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors'responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error andareconsideredmaterial if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description ofour responsibiltiies for the audit of the financial statementsis located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/ auditors responsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report

This report, induding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 160of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinlons, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion::
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounbng records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneraiton specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Paolo Taure (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London 25 April 2018

260/260



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的および基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	４受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額および事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

